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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
31 31 31 31 31
12 12 12 12 12
( 10) ¢ 10) ¢ 10) ¢ 10) ¢ 10)
1'038'ff% 1,197,385 1,201,048 1,202,894 1,201,085
103,971,389 | 113,296,569 | 113,643,162 | 113,817,830 | 113,646,663
3?1'225 426,288 527,025 402,909 589,492
34,243,167 | 40,335,371 | 49,867,106 | 38,123,250 | 55,777,733
148,059 143,959 64,340 185,168 314,99
(@) 2 3 (@ED) (@)
14,000,343 | 13,621,401 6,087,851 | 17,520,596 | 29,804,922
120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
11,354,400 | 11,354,400 | 11,354,400 | 11,354,400 | 11,354,400
120,000,000 | 120,000,000 | 120,000,000 | 120,000,000 [ 120,000,000
1,377,794 1,498,135 1,564,142 1,743,854 1,996,485
130,366,868 | 141,753,534 | 147,999,116 | 165,003,465 | 188,907,411
18,513,506 | 20,362,315 | 23,237,498 | 24,133,403 | 25,192,049
1,751,747,938 | 1,926,682,245 | 2,198,732,061 | 2,283,502,592 | 2,383,671,676
11.482 12.484 13.035 14.532 16.637
1,086.427 1,181.236 1,233.372 1,375.018 1,574.193
Co 1.234 1.200 0.536 1.543 2.625
116.761 113.544 50.716 145.999 248.378
7 7.442 7.357 6.731 7.226 7.925
€98 10.746 9.609 4.113 10.618 15.778
(1,306,320)|  (1,045,144) (558,559) (721,523)|  (1,451,385)
(123,604,850)|  (98,891,525)| (52,850,853)| (68,270,506)| (137,330,049)
(3,757) (25,964) (43,163) (24,554) (20,418)
(355,487)  (2.456,714)  (4.084,083)|  (2,323,200)  (1,931,951)
1,324,138 1,205,087 1,123,095 2,279,129 198,219
125,289,938 | 114,025,332 | 106,267,249 | 215,651,186 | 18,755,482
1,282,624 1,416,603 1,937,976 3,471,028 2,197,444
121,361,883 | 134,038,976 | 183,371,289 | 328,428,669 | 207,922,151
639.70 717.04 851.95 864.16 898.80
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36 4 0
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31 12
2021 2022
1 300,073 356,167
2 75,498 84,309
/ (73,030) 60,551
/ 68,362 83,594
26,941 3,732
3 5,065 1,139
402,909 589,492
1 4 198,905 238,222
2 4 87,395 105,254
10,950 10,783
/ (73,030) 60,551
/ 3 36,024 30,693
260,244 445,503
(75,076) (130,507)
185,168 314,996
1
2
3 /
/
4 2018
2022 2021 18.7
2021 161 2022 182
2022 2021 198.9
238.2
2022 2021 11.7
2022 2021 87.4
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2021 31 2022 31
878,200 988,592
(50,097) (51,177)
828,103 937,415
2,349,059 2,504,099
14,560,675 16,709,871
511,865 596,247
18,249,702 20,747,632
(197,150) (161, 450)
18,052,552 20,586,182
2021 31 2022 31
2,534,928 2,749,030
(52,750) (30, 350)
(884,893) (1,032,349)
1,597,285 1,686,331
2021
2021 6.6
2022
15
10
2021
2021 1.26 0.9

31/312

oOoOooodn

5.6



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2021 31 2022 31
6,752,618 7,593,144
11,497,084 13,154,488
18,249,702 20,747,632
2021 31 2022 31
303,342 300,137
198,279 191,575
130,839 128,240
64,180 60,986
24,683 26,120
13,196 11,430
734,519 718,488
31 12
2021 2022
751,126 738,758
406,690 412,764
45,078 49,563
1,202,894 1,201,085
(457,563) (261,370)
(342,422) (350, 223)
(799,985) (611,593)

402,909 589,492
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31 12
2021 2022
( )
918,943 915,870
72,795 81,118
(240,612) (258, 230)
751,126 738,758
282,218 243,354
(2,069,790) (126,324)
2,217,217 117,540
26,722 25,897
1 1,196 903
457,563 261,370
39,795 46,790
5,283 2,773
45,078 49,563
1 2019 16
2022 2021 1.6
2022 2021 11.4
2022 2021 7.3
2022 2021 42.9

2022
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31 12
2021 2022
1 7,593 7,184
2,257 2,321
1,918 1,589
2,010 1,889
108 -
13,886 12,983
15,229 11,691
2,974 -
18,203 11,691
32,089 24,674
1 2019 16
31
2021 2022

259,150 197,150

(51,996) (34,929)

/ (10,004) (771)

* 197,150 161,450

31
2021 2022
(25,650) (21,211)
/ (10,004) (771)

/ (35,654) (21,982)
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31
2021 2022
67,250 52,750
/ (1,213) (376)
(13,287) (22,024)
52,750 30,350
* 2022 31 400,000 2021 9,400,000
2022 31
31 12
2021 2022
(1,086,880) (2,916,400)
918,785 916,572
(282) (246)
406,690 412,764
(341,608) (306,649)
/ (554,000) 554,000
(64,228) (111,426)
(721,523) (1,451,385)
(24,554) (20,418)
2,279,129 198,219
/ 1,533,052 (1,273,584)
2022 198
1,022 2,916

1,274
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2021 31 2022 31
3,471,028 2,197,444
554,000 -
16,764,701 18,313,002
1,597,285 1,686,331
254,303 391,673
4,284 4,284
42,664 29,076
23,508 20,665
35,014 27,830
9,125 2,158
2,148,232 3,432,476
24,904,144 26,104,939
1,234,558 1,234,009
16,851,185 16,379,643
3,619,525 4,445,872
778,641 1,251,824
496,864 647,283
103,909 116,261
41,950 35,731
23,126,632 24,110,623
1,777,512 1,994,316
120,000 120,000
1,657,512 1,874,316
1,777,512 1,994,316

31
10,995,442,000

9,852,748,000
11,159,340,000
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2021 31 2022 31
721,757 678,638
406,690 412,764

44,064 46,393
1,172,511 1,137,795
(562,926) (382,900)
(342,422) (350,223)
(905,348) (733,123)
267,163 404,672
170,043 203,110
437,206 607,782
35,721 22,321
13,287 22,024
(157,206) (165,212)
(32,089) (24,674)
(35,791) (58,428)
(8,559) (8,000)
(28,099) (30,077)
31,622 32,198
256,092 397,934
(79,202) (128,865)
176,890 269,069
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- 1,650,034 - 1,650,034
3,471,028 - - 3,471,028
- 554,000 - 554,000
4,120,742 14,128,960 - 18,249,702
12,614,500 (12,614,500) - -
44,600 - 44,164 88,764
20,250,870 3,718,494 44,164 24,013,528
4,115,458 - - 4,115,458
4,686,925 - - 4,686,925
873,992 11,290,268 - 12,164,260
8,895,756 (8,895,756) - -
3,037,596 (3,037,596) - -
12,100 - 486,306 498,406

- 41,950 - 41,950
21,621,827 (601,134) 486,306 21,506,999
(1,370,957) 4,319,628 (442,142) 2,506,529
- 1,716,681 - 1,716,681
2,197,444 - - 2,197,444
4,575,525 16,172,107 - 20,747,632
12,921,500 (12,921,500) - -
162,100 - 51,434 213,534
19,856,569 4,967,288 51,434 24,875,291
4,757,304 - - 4,757,304
4,268,914 - - 4,268,914
1,223,796 10,886,933 - 12,110,729
9,184,803 (9,184,803) - -
2,567,096 (2,567,096) - -
169,000 - 485,801 654,801

- 35,731 - 35,731
22,170,913 (829, 235) 485,801 21,827,479
(2,314,344) 5,796,523 (434,367) 3,047,812
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2 8
1 1
97 91
0 0
100 100
2022
31 2022 31 12
2022 31
1,192 1,500 1,464
2022 31
150 1,011 550
2022 31
720 2,782 1,758
2022 2022 31
1,050 2,394
2022 31 11,030
8,358 2022 31

7.5
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2021 11 364
50
50
364
2022 31
364 2020 11
2019 11 2019 11
2020 11 364 2019 11
2021 11
865 2022 31
2022 31
2022 31
1,035
10
100
100 2022 31
2022 31
(
) (D] )
2009 11 3,400 25 1,917.72
2012 2,400 15 1,605.57

(D)
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8,965 12,172
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2022 31 82.1
2021 91.0
2003
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2021 17

(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
El4 5AL
(One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom)
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2022 31 2022 31
)
2022 31
2022 31
( )
1,206 480
19 68
- 37
919 25
- 32
- 4
7,558 410
1,387 61

62 14
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120,000,000 120,000,000
120,000,000
120,000,000
2022 31
120,000,000 100
120,000,000 100
91,264,000 76.05

2022 30 2022 31
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14.28

2020 1966 18
( )
2017 11
( )
2019 1968 19
2014 30 1959 12
2016 10 1961 12 20
2022 1975 22
2017 11 1961 25
2018 1961

2021 12 31
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2021
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2021 31 2022 31
2021 31 2022 31
12 12
3,051,971 1,812,635
3,051,971 1,812,635
31 2022 31 12
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2021 31 2022 31
)
605,617 884,742
282,005 405,751
334,451 330,243
1,222,073 1,620,736
36,976 16,137
1,259,049 1,636,873
75,775 97,141

52 780 433 757

2022 31 12

12

2022 31

40
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2022 2021 31

38
131

23

134 2022 13
94.62
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@
31
2021 2022
3a 751,126 71,072 738,758 69,901
406,690 38,481 412,764 39,056
3b 45,078 4,265 49,563 4,690
1,202,894 113,818 | 1,201,085 113,647
3a (457,563)|  (43,295)[ (261,370)  (24,731)
(342,422)|  (32,400)( (350,223)|  (33,138)
(799,985)|  (75.695)[ (611,593)  (57,869)
402,909 38,123 589,492 55,778
4 59,188 5,600 87,613 8,290
462,097 43,724 677,105 64,068
9b 35,654 3,374 21,982 2,080
9c 13,287 1,257 22,024 2,084
(157,206)|  (14,875)[ (165,212)  (15,632)
5 (32,089) (3,036)|  (24,674) (2,335)
I (35,791) (3.387)|  (58,428) (5,528)
(8,559) (810) (8,000) (757)
(28,099) .,659)|  (30,077) (2,846)
10,950 1,036 10,783 1,020
260,244 24,624 445,503 42,153
(75,076) (7,104)|  (130,507)|  (12,349)
185,168 17,521 314,996 29,805
(5,456) (516) 1,109 105
179,712 17,004 316,105 29,910
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@
2021 31 2022 31

2la 3,471,028 328,429 | 2,197,444 207,922
21b 554,000 52,419 — —
8a | 18,052,552 | 1,708,132 | 20,586,182 | 1,947,865
8b 1,597,285 151,135 | 1,686,331 159,561
17 161,424 15,274 330,107 31,235
25 95,639 9,049 96,322 9,114
28 42,664 4,037 29,076 2,751
26 23,508 2,224 20,665 1,955
27 35,014 3,313 27,830 2,633
29 11,525 1,090 4,558 431
23 88,764 8,399 213,534 20,205
24,133,403 | 2,283,503 | 25,192,049 | 2,383,672

10 4,115,458 389,405 | 4,757,304 450,136
11 16,851,185 | 1,594,459 | 16,379,643 | 1,549,842
17 778,641 73,675 | 1,251,824 118,448
24a 498,406 47,159 654,801 61,957
24b 103,909 9,832 116,261 11,001
27 41,950 3,969 35,731 3,381
22,389,549 | 2,118,499 | 23,195,564 | 2,194,764
1,743,854 165,003 | 1,996,485 188,907

14 120,000 11,354 120,000 11,354
15 3,020 286 4,129 391
16 1,620,834 153,363 | 1,872,356 177,162
1,743,854 165,003 | 1,996,485 188,907
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(©)
2020 120,000 8,476 | 1,435,666 | 1,564,142
185,168 185,168
(5,456) — (5,456)
— (5,456) 185,168 179,712
2021 31 120,000 3,020 | 1,620,834 | 1,743,854
2021 120,000 3,020 | 1,620,834 | 1,743,854
— — 314,996 314,996
— 1,109 — 1,109
— 1,109 314,996 316,105
16 — — (63,474) (63,474)
2022 31 120,000 4,129 | 1,872,356 | 1,996,485
2020 11,354 802 135,843 147,999
17,521 17,521
(516) — (516)
— (516) 17,521 17,004
2021 31 11,354 286 153,363 165,003
2021 11,354 286 153,363 165,003
— — 29,805 29,805
— 105 — 105
— 105 29,805 29,910
16 — — (6,006) (6,006)
2022 31 11,354 391 177,162 188,907
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(1,086,880)|  (102,841) (2,916,400)|  (275,950)
918,785 86,935 916,572 86,726
(282) @n (246) (23)
406,690 38,481 412,764 39,056
(341,608) (32,323)]  (306,649) (29,015)
(554,000) (52,419) 554,000 52,419
(64,228) 6.,077)|  (111,426) (10,543)
(721,523) (68,271)| (1.,451,385)|  (137,330)
(19,449) (1,840) (30,040) (2,842)
(11,145) (1,055) (6,178) (585)
6,040 572 4,591 434
— — 11,209 1,061
(24,554) (2,323) (20,418) (1,932)
27,073,742 | 2,561,717 | 21,873,908 | 2,069,709
(24,789,050)| (2,345,540)| (21,605,710)| (2,044,332)
(5,563) (526) (6,505) (616)
— — (63,474) (6,006)
2,279,129 215,651 198,219 18,755
1,533,052 145,057 | (1,273,584)|  (120,507)
1,937,976 183,371 | 3,471,028 328,429
3,471,028 328,429 | 2,197,444 207,922

60/312




EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

®

2065 207
2022 24

@
2001

IFRS

1ASB IFRS

61/312



2021
AASB
AASB AASB
AASB 16 AASB 139
AASB 101
AASB AASB 101 AASB 108
AASB 134 AASB

(b)
¢ )

62/312

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2022

2023

2022 31



¢ )

20

©
¢ )

¢ )

50

63/312

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
(d)
ASIC  2016/191
) COVID-19
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COVID-19
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COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
2022 31
ECL COVID-19

20
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@
918,943 915,870
72,795 81,118
(240,612) (258, 230)
751,126 738,758
282,218 243,354
(2,069,790) (126,324)
2,217,217 117,540
26,722 25,897
1,196 903
457,563 261,370
(V)
39,795 46,790
5,283 2,773
45,078 49,563
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2021 31 2022 31
37,101 56,643
8,989 15,520
11,720 13,919
1,378 1,531
59,188 87,613
24
2021 31 2022 31
7,593 7,184
2,257 2,321
1,918 1,589
2,010 1,889
108 —
13,886 12,983
15,229 11,691
2,974 —
18,203 11,691
32,089 24,674
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92,328 122,299
(21,702) 6,967
4,450 1,241
75,076 130,507
26,645 6,290
(4,943) (13,257)
21,702 (6,967)
260,244 445,503
78,073 133,651
(3,285) (3,235)
285 42
75,073 130,458
(4,447) (1,192)
4,450 1,241
75,076 130,507
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*
268,880 61,480 27,471 357,831
27,383 12,412 — 39,795
3,810 1,606 (133) 5,283
8,426 12,450 1,211 22,087
— 37,126 (25) 37,101
308,499 125,074 28,524 462,097
198,905 87,395 — 286,300
2022 31
*
319,219 71,633 149,077 539,929
33,197 13,593 — 46,790
3,751 (917) (61) 2,773
15,434 14,656 880 30,970
— 56,136 507 56,643
371,601 155,101 150,403 677,105
238,222 105,254 — 343,476
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2021 31
16,095,973 3,553,863 4,483,567 24,133,403
2022 31
18,208,897 4,063,617 2,919,535 25,192,049
2021 31 2022 31

286,300 343,476

10,950 10,783

(73,030) 60,551

36,024 30,693

260,244 445,503

(75,076) (130,507)

185,168 314,996
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878,200 988,592

(50,097) (51,177)

828,103 937,415

2,349,059 2,504,099
14,560,675 16,709,871

511,865 596,247

18,249,702 20,747,632

9%a (197,150) (161,450)
18,052,552 20,586,182
6,752,618 7,593,144
11,497,084 13,154,488
18,249,702 20,747,632

2021 31 2022 31

266,525 292,659

228,212 251,210

183,274 205,575

129,493 149,716

47,365 59,976

23,331 29,456

878,200 988,592
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2,534,928 2,749,030
9c (52,750) (30, 350)
(884,893) (1,032,349)
1,597,285 1,686,331
303,342 300,137
198,279 191,575
130,839 128,240
64,180 60,986
24,683 26,120
13,196 11,430
734,519 718,488
1,567,432 1,597,285
598,053 634,947
(240,278) (218,078)
(342,422) (350,223)
14,500 22,400
1,597,285 1,686,331
2022 31 12,324,000 2021 10,249,000
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2021 31 2022 31
259,150 197,150
(51,996) (34,929)
(10,004) @771)
197,150 161,450
(25,650) (21,211)
(10,004) @771)
(35,654) (21,982)
67,250 52,750
(1,213) (376)
(13,287) (22,024)
52,750 30,350
AASB 400,000 2021 9,400,000
31,792,000 2021 46,036,000
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ECL ECL
a1 12 ECL
97,533 79,051 26,716 203,300
39,144 (34,162) (4,982) —
(43,781) (3,659) 47,065 (375)
26,651 3,791 1,206 31,648
(15,419) (9,267) (3,187) (27,873)
_ — (50,400) (50,400)
104,128 35,754 16,418 156,300
ECL ECL
a1 12 ECL
104,128 35,754 16,418 156,300
(4,706) 5,117 (411) —
(50,879) (7,921) 28,919 (29,881)
57,208 5,196 2,222 64,626
(15,491) (6,450) (2,185) (24,126)
— — (33,520) (33,520)
90,260 31,696 11,443 133,399
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ECL ECL
33,496 2,954 36,450
705 (705) —
(10,222) 2,637 (7,585)
7,960 503 8,463
(4,142) (140) (4,282)
— (1,596) (1,596)
27,797 3,653 31,450
ECL ECL
27,797 3,653 31,450
944 (944) —
(21,299) 235 (21,064)
20,968 466 21,434
(2,198) (562) (2,760)
— (1,409) (1,409)
26,212 1,439 27,651
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ECL ECL
- 12 ECL
15,398,800 786,685 60,998 16,246,483
185,003 (203,706) 18,703 —
(2,923,255) (70,576) 16,083 (2,977,748)
5,340,643 55,976 4,375 5,400,994
(2,266,719) (84,571) (6,366) (2,357,656)
_ — (50, 400) (50, 400)
15,734,472 483,808 43,393 16,261,673
ECL ECL
- 12 ECL
15,734,472 483,808 43,393 16,261,673
(266,106) 218,397 47,709 —
(2,103,292) (100,876) 9,872 (2,194,296)
7,004,151 42,451 6,502 7,053,104
(2,648,079) (89,540) (6,646)  (2,744,265)
— — (33,520) (33,520)
17,721,146 554,240 67,310 18,342,696
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2021 31
2,040,056 7,936 2,047,992
(7,141) 7,141 —
(369, 610) (2,897) (372,507)
ECL 754,025 2,547 756,572
(441,646) (786) (442,432)
— (1,596) (1,596)
31 1,975,684 12,345 1,988,029

ECL ECL

2022 31
1,975,684 12,345 1,988,029
(4,632) 4,632 —
(382,272) (1,942) (384,214)
ECL 1,251,264 3,769 1,255,033
(449, 740) (2,763) (452,503)
— (1,409) (1,409)
31 2,390,304 14,632 2,404,936

ECL
ECL
20
ECL
ECL

ECL
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57,300,000 2021 31 118,300,000 CovID-19
ECL
2022 31 18,700,000 2021 31
66,100,000 12 ECL
ECL

20
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2021 3 2022 31
4,115,458 4,757,304
4,115,458 4,757,304
2,524,735 1,825,097
1,590,723 2,932,207
4,115,458 4,757,304
2022 31 3,523,295,000
2021 2,880,900,000
2022 31 3,523,295,000
2021 2,880,900,000 2022 31
922,577,000 2021 738,625,000 2022 31
4,445,872,000 2021 3,619,525,000
2022 31 788,000 2021 672,000
2027 11 25 2028 20

0.765 0.715
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12,164,260 12,110,729
16,851,185 16,379,643
8,030,742 7,139,956
8,820,443 9,239,687
16,851,185 16,379,643
3.5
TFS 2000 14
TFS 2000
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3,619,525 4,445,872
2,880,900 3,523,295
738,625 922,577
3,890,494 4,760,640
2,903,041 3,548,540
987,453 1,212,100
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29,858,365 38,655,658
15,000 15,000
4,590,000 4,590,000
1,210,000 1,210,000
18,130,381 17,655,896
2,880,900 3,523,295
738,625 922,577
11,727,984 20,999,762
15,000 15,000
1,709,100 1,066,705
471,375 287,423
31,884,097,000 2021 24,074,833,000
1,685,000,000 2021 2,021,967,000
400,000,000 2021 400,000,000
2022 31
1,335,203,000 2021 1,313,111,000
3,351,359,000 2021 2,048,454,000
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2021 31 2022 31
1,435,666 1,620,834
185,168 314,996
(63,474)
1,620,834 1,872,356
63,474
— 63,474
2022 31
76.05 2021 43.55
2022 30

91,264,000
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2021 31 2022 31
86,161 319,315
40,559 8,453
31,794 —
158,514 327,768
cUA 2,910 2,339
161,424 330,107
128,682 72,454
625,501 1,046,691
24,458 132,679
778,641 1,251,824
65,140 18,495
93,317 356,230
96,284 311,612
685,324 895,504

91/312



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

olS

CCR

92/312



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2021 31
— 31,794 — 31,794
— 86,161 — 86,161
— 40,559 — 40,559
CVA — 2,910 — 2,910
— 161,424 — 161,424
— 24,458 — 24,458
— 128,682 — 128,682
— 625,501 — 625,501
— 778,641 — 778,641
2022 31
— 319,315 — 319,315
— 8,453 — 8,453
CVA — 2,339 — 2,339
— 330,107 — 330,107
— 132,679 — 132,679
— 72,454 — 72,454
— 1,046,691 — 1,046,691
— 1,251,824 — 1,251,824
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18,052,552 19,728,614 20,586,182 20,457,928

554,000 554,995 — —
18,606,552 20,283,609 20,586,182 20,457,928
4,115,458 4,145,305 4,757,304 4,797,654
16,851,185 17,403,150 16,379,643 16,471,913
20,966,643 21,548,455 21,136,947 21,269,567
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31
3,471,028 — 3,471,028 — — 3,471,028
554,000 — 554,000 — — 554,000
18,052,552 — 18,052,552 — — 18,052,552
161,424 — 161,424  (140,732)  (12,100) 8,592
113,705 (24,941) 88,764 — (44,600) 44,164
22,352,709 (24,941) 22,327,768  (140,732)  (56,700) 22,130,336
4,115,458 — 4,115,458 — — 4,115,458
778,641 — 778,641  (140,732)  (44,600) 593,309
523,347 (24,941) 498,406 — (12,100) 486,306
5,417,446 (24,941) 5,392,505  (140,732)  (56,700) 5,195,073
2,197,444 — 2,197,444 — — 2,197,444
20,586,182 — 20,586,182 — — 20,586,182
330,107 — 330,107  (238,044)  (169,000)  (76,937)
234,053 (20,519) 213,534 —  (162,100) 51,434
23,347,786 (20,519) 23,327,267  (238,044)  (331,100) 22,758,123
4,757,304 — 4,757,304 — — 4,757,304
1,251,824 — 1,251,824  (238,044)  (162,100) 851,680
675,320 (20,519) 654,801 —  (169,000) 485,801
6,684,448 (20,519) 6,663,929  (238,044)  (331,100) 6,094,785
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2021 31
— 1,650,034 — 1,650,034
3,471,028 — — 3,471,028
— 554,000 — 554,000
4,120,742 14,128,960 — 18,249,702
12,614,500 (12,614,500) — —
44,600 — 44,164 88,764
20,250,870 3,718,494 44,164 24,013,528
4,115,458 — — 4,115,458
4,686,925 — — 4,686,925
873,992 11,290,268 — 12,164,260
8,895,756 (8,895,756) — —
3,037,596 (3,037,596) — —
12,100 — 486,306 498,406
— 41,950 — 41,950
21,621,827 (601,134) 486,306 21,506,999
(1,370,957) 4,319,628 (442,142) 2,506,529
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4,575,525 16,172,107 — 20,747,632

12,921,500 (12,921,500) — —

162,100 — 51,434 213,534

19,856,569 4,967,288 51,434 24,875,291

4,757,304 — — 4,757,304

4,268,914 — — 4,268,914

1,223,796 10,886,933 — 12,110,729

9,184,803 (9,184,803) — —

2,567,096 (2,567,096) — —

169,000 — 485,801 654,801

— 35,731 — 35,731

22,170,913 (829,235) 485,801 21,827,479

(2,314,344) 5,796,523 (434,367) 3,047,812
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LIBOR 1BOR
2021 FCA
LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
2022 31
LIBOR
LIBOR
()
12
2021 31 2022 31
2,135 (2,300)
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GDP 2022 6.9 2023 3.1
2022 4.7
2022 CPI 3.7
45 COVID
GDP
2022 GDP 2.6 2023 1.3
2022 6.4 2022
2022 CPI 0.9
2022 31 ECL
84,076,000 65,690,000 229,957,000 2021 110,249,000
100,877,000 147,177,000 12,197,000 2021
54,074,000 2022 31 ECL
161,050,000 2021 187,750,000

()
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ECL ECL
12 ECL
11,715,802 — — 11,715,802
— 112,861 — 112,861
— 26,651 — 26,651
— — 43,392 43,392
11,715,802 139,512 43,392 11,898,706
13,165,058 77,866 — 13,242,924
— 178,194 — 178,194
— 31,140 — 31,140
— — 67,310 67,310
13,165,058 287,200 67,310 13,519,568
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ECL ECL
12 ECL

2021 31
4,018,670 275,073 — 4,293,743
1 — 69,223 — 69,223
12 — — — —
4,018,670 344,296 — 4,362,966

2022 31
4,556,088 238,746 — 4,794,834
1 — 28,294 — 28,294
12 — — — —
4,556,088 267,040 — 4,823,128

ECL ECL

2021 31
30 473,858 — 473,858
31 60 13,702 — 13,702
61 90 4,640 — 4,640
90 = 12,235 12,235
492,200 12,235 504,435

2022 31
30 501,395 — 501,395
31 60 15,442 — 15,442
61 90 5,187 — 5,187
90 — 14,524 14,524
522,024 14,524 536,548
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ECL ECL
2021 31
1,435,324 — 1,435,324
11 48,160 — 48,160
12 — 109 109
1,483,484 109 1,483,593
2022 31
1,809,090 — 1,809,090
11 59,190 — 59,190
12 — 108 108
1,868,280 108 1,868,388
)
2021 31 2022 31
AA- 2 8
A+ 1 1
A 97 91
A- — —
100 100
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2021 31 12
* 192,519 251,120 2,103,517 1,601,027 — 4,148,183
. 2,154,387 2,176,347 3,821,821 8,367,007 805,423 17,325,075
382,075 11,279 48,628 56,424 — 498,406
517 1,037 5,747 27.299 11,513 46,113
2.729.498 2,439,783 5,979,713 10,051,847 816,936 22,017,777
(807,564) (1,361,781) (1,019,049) _ —  (3,188,394)
802,468 1,372,182 1,005,860 _ — 3,180,510
(1,608) (6,488)  (32,168)  (23,566) —  (63,830)
1,053,781 3,888 1,037,718 6,372,859 967,740 9,435,986
(1,027,540) (3,362) (1,021,205) (5,798,516)  (805,423) (8,656,046)
19,537 4,439 (28.844) 550,777 162,317 708,226
2,749,035 2,444,222 5,950,869 10,602,624 979,253 22,726,003
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2022 31 12

214,244 290,460 1,384,575 3,023,975 — 4,913,254
1,797,259 3,312,295 2,140,006 8,059,517 1,501,518 16,810,595

557,152 10,161 45,132 42,356 — 654,801
726 1,440 6,345 22,066 8,235 38,812
2,569,381 3,614,356 3,576,058 11,147,914 1,509,753 22,417,462

(381,674) (2,303,126)  (368,862) — —  (3,053,662)
401,323 2,381,768 402,960 — — 3,186,051
(510) (5,513) (2,000) 51,733 — 43,710
1,352,032 126,367 852,743 6,052,187 1,733,659 10,116,988
(1,136,289)  (124,720)  (786,589) (5,097,407) (1,501,518) (8,646,523)
234,882 74,776 98,252 1,006,513 232,141 1,646,564

2,804,263 3,689,132 3,674,310 12,154,427 1,741,894 24,064,026
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2021 31 2022 31
110,028 116,444
3,361,000 2,081,000
3,471,028 2,197,444
232,623,000
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(b)

2021 31 2022 31

554,000 —
554,000 —

554,000 —

554,000 —
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2021 31 2022 31
185,168 314,996
(10,950) (10,783)

32,089 24,674
1,822 2,298
24,920 19,891
(37,101) (56,643)
(3,839,389) (455,620)
1,834,876 269,115
(62,000) (35,700)
(14,500) (22,400)
44,773 (2,497,930)
20,909 (11,372)
(11,525) 6,967
(10,177) —
(124,641) 156,919
(50,458) (92,833)
32,550 12,114
1,816,111 370,922
(554,000) 554,000
(721,523) (1,451,385)
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(b)
AASB 16
2020 2021
31
20,711,784 2,284,692 (2,077,543) 47,710 —_ — 20,966,643
45,087 (5,563) — — — 2,426 41,950
AASB 16
2021 2022
31
20,966,643 268,198 (125,954) 28,060 — — 21,136,947
41,950 (6,505) — — — 286 35,731
23
2021 31 2022 31
24,393 40,981
63,519 172,403
852 150
88,764 213,534
12 87,769 202,778
12 995 10,756
88,764 213,534
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€Y
2021 31 2022 31
14,326 16,684
70,790 63,586
* 219,824 196,454
* 85,023 258,880
75,624 91,992
32,819 27,205
498,406 654,801
12 441,982 612,445
12 56,424 42,356
498,406 654,801
*
(b
2021 31 2022 31
103,909 116,261
73,428,000 2021 62,345,000 12
2021 31 2022 31
63,428 71,332
AASB 15 2022 31 2021 31
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2021 2022
31 31 2021 2022
31 31
90,145 95,639 45.45 45.45
10,950 10,783
— (11,209)
(5,456) 1,109
95,639 96,322
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2021 2022
31 31
(b)
15,332 14,890
(4,382) (4,107)
10,950 10,783
©
2021 31
536,657 440,411 59,319 10,950
2022 31
566,959 468,556 56,775 10,783

20 50
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@
(b)
26
2021 31
17,136 3,664 13,472
6,279 3,780 2,499
8,966 1,429 7,537
32,381 8,873 23,508
2022 31
17,136 5,985 11,151
6,535 5,369 1,166
10,185 1,837 8,348
33,856 13,191 20,665
2021 31
13,405 3,005 7,439 23,849
2,316 1,520 7,309 11,145
— — (5.,201) (5,201)
(2,257) (1,918) (2,010) (6,185)
8 — — 8
— (108) — (108)
31 13,472 2,499 7,537 23,508
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13,472 2,499 7,537 23,508
— 256 5,922 6,178
— — (3,222) (3,222)

(2,321) (1,589) (1,889) (5,799)

11,151 1,166 8,348 20,665
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2021 31 31
35,014 27,830
35,014 27,830
41,950 35,731
41,950 35,731
6,219 7,609
35,731 28,122
41,950 35,731
2021 31 31
5 7,593 7,184
3a 1,196 903
282 246
7,300,000
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AASB 138
IFRIC SaaS
2019
2021 SaaS
SaaS
SaaS SaaS
SaaS
SaaS
SaaS
SaaS

SaaS

SaaS
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SaaS
SaaS

SaaS SaaS

SaaS
SaaS

SaaS

SaaS

SaaS

SaaS

SaaS
30.041 2021 19.449

SaaS
SaaS
13.971
5.7
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67,958 25,294 42,664
62,758 33,682 29,076
2021 2022
31 31
41,426 42,664
19,449 30,041
(15,229) (11,691)
®) (31,938)
(2,974) —
42,664 29,076
27.9

.03
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2021 31 2022 31
74,970 57,540
3,806 16,920
42,444 45,466
8,276 15,860
129,496 135,786
112,405 126,085
5,566 5,143
117,971 131,228
11,525 4,558
102,851 129,496
(22,950) (17,430)
43,405 13,114
5,375 3,022
815 7,584
129,496 135,786
113,028 117,971
5,243 13,680
(300) (423)
117,971 131,228
11,525 4,558
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GST GST
31 GST GST
2003
2021 3 2022 31
ECL
25
ECL S3 ECL
S3

2021
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2022 31
2021 2022
31 31
100 100
ASIC
37
2021 2022
31 31
100 100
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25

2021 31 2022 31

3,051,971 1,812,635

31

31
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2021 31 2022 31
14,329 12,376
(135) (123)
(20,803) (19,765)
(199) (250)
(194) (211)
300 —
2,346 2,457
* (20,755) (20,498)
* 2,429 4,247
40,522 26,428
* 179,302 170,026
4,828 4,374
* 10,383 9,875
— 104
2022 31 2021 31

131/312



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn
35

2022 31

2021 31 2022 31
3,471,028 2,197,444
554,000 —
16,764,701 18,313,002
1,597,285 1,686,331
254,303 391,673
4,284 4,284
42,664 29,076
23,508 20,665
35,014 27,830
9,125 2,158
2,148,232 3,432,476
24,904,144 26,104,939
1,234,558 1,234,009
16,851,185 16,379,643
3,619,525 4,445,872
778,641 1,251,824
496,864 647,283
103,909 116,261
41,950 35,731
23,126,632 24,110,623
1,777,512 1,994,316
120,000 120,000
1,657,512 1,874,316
1,777,512 1,994,316
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2022 31 9,852,748,000 10,014,765,000
2021 10,995,442,000 11,159,340,000

133/312



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2022 31
2021 31 2022 31
721,757 678,638
406,690 412,764
44,064 46,393
1,172,511 1,137,795
(562,926) (382,900)
(342,422) (350, 223)
(905,348) (733,123)
267,163 404,672
170,043 203,110
437,206 607,782
35,721 22,321
13,287 22,024
(157, 206) (165,212)
(32,089) (24,674)
IT (35,791) (58,428)
(8,559) (8,000)
(28,099) (30,077)
31,622 32,198
256,002 397,934
(79,202) (128,865)
176,890 269,069
@
()
30 30 30
©
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2021 31 2022 31
605,617 884,742
282,005 405,751
334,451 330,243
1,222,073 1,620,736
36,976 16,137
1,259,049 1,636,873
75,775 97,141

ASIC 2016/785

2022 31
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2021 31 2022 31
3,471,028 2,197,444
554,000 —
18,052,552 20,586,182
1,597,285 1,686,331
254,303 391,673
95,639 96,322
42,664 29,076
23,508 20,665
35,014 27,830
11,525 4,558
827,389 1,136,112
24,964,907 26,176,193
1,234,558 1,234,009
16,851,185 16,379,643
SPV 3,619,525 4,445,872
778,641 1,251,824
498,406 654,801
103,909 116,261
41,950 35,731
23,128,174 24,118,141
1,836,733 2,058,052
120,000 120,000
3,020 4,129
1,713,713 1,933,923
1,836,733 2,058,052
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2021 31 2022 31
751,126 738,758
406,690 412,764

45,078 49,563
1,202,894 1,201,085
(575,786) (408,652)
(342,422) (350,223)
(918,208) (758,875)
284,686 442,210
170,455 203,582
455,141 645,792
35,654 21,982
13,287 22,024
(157,206) (165,212)
(32,089) (24,674)
(35,791) (58,428)
(8,559) (8,000)
(28,099) (30,077)
10,950 10,783
253,288 414,190
(75,076) (130,507)
178,212 283,683
(5,456) 1,109
172,756 284,792
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@ 8 2001
() 2001 Corporations Regulations 2001
() 2022 31
(b)
© 37 37
@
2022 24 2022 24
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED AND TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
Consolidated Consolidated

Note 2022 2021
5'000 5'000

Interest revenue 3a T3B,758 751,126
Rental income on motor vehicles under operating lease 412,764 406,690
Fee income ib 49,563 45,078
Financing and similar revenue 1,201,085 1,202,894
Interest expense and similar charges 3a {261.370) {457.5613]
Depreciation expense on motor wehiclas under operating lease {350,223) (342.422]
Financing expense and similar charges {611,593) (799,585)
Mot financing and similar révenus 580,492 402,909
Other revenue L B7.613 39,188
MNet eperating income 677,105 452,097
Credit impairment reversalfiloss) L] 21,982 35,654
Non-credit impairment reversal/(loss) s 212,024 13,287
Employes benelits expense (165,212) {157,206]
Depreciation, write-off and amortisation 5 |24.674) (32.089]
IT and communication expense |58,428) {35,791)
Sales and marketing expense |8, 000) |8,553)
Other expenses [30.077) |28,099)
Share of net profits of associates accounted for using the equity
methoed 10,783 10,950
Profit before income tax 445,503 260,244
Imcome tax expense {130,507} 175,078]
Prafit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia
Limited 314,996 185,168
Other comprehensive income
ftems that moy be reclossified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of forelgn operations 1,109 |5.456]
Taotal comprehensive income attributable te awners of Toyota
Finance Australia Limited 316,105 179,712

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying nates.

139/312



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED AND TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Consolidated Consolidated
MNote 2022 021
000 $'000
Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents ila 2,197 A44 3,471,028
Term deposits i1b . 554,000
Loans and reccivables Ba 20,586,182 18,052 552
Maotor vehicles under operating lease ab 1,686,331 1,597,285
Derivative financial Instruments 17 330,107 161,424
Investment accounted for using the eguity method 25 96,322 95,638
Intangible assets 28 29,076 42,664
Property, plant and equipment 26 20,665 23,508
Right-of-use assets 27 27,830 35,004
Deferred tax assets 29 4,558 11,535
Other assets 23 213,534 88,764
Total assets 25,192 048 24,133 403
Liahilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 10 4,757,304 4,115,458
Bonds and commercial paper 11 16,379,643 16,851,185
Derivative financial instruments 17 1,251,824 778,641
Cther liabilities 24a 654 801 498,406
Contract liabilities 24b 116,261 103,909
Lease liabilities 27 35,731 41,950
Total liabilities : 23,195,564 22,389,548
Net assets 1,996,485 1,743,854
Equity
Contributed equity 14 120,000 120,000
Reserves 15 4,139 a0
Retained earnings 16 1,872,356 1,620,834
Tatal equity 1,996,485 1,743 854

The abave consalidated statement of financial pasition should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED AND TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Contributed Retained Total
equity Reserves earnings equity
Motes 5000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Balance at 1 April 2021 120,000 3,020 1,620,834 1,743,354
Profit for the year - - 314,996 314 99&
Other comprehensive income - 1,108 - 1,104
Total comprehendive income for
the year . 1,109 314,996 316,105
Dividend paid 16 . . {63.474) (63,474)
Balance at 31 March 2022 120,000 4,129 1,872,356 1,996,485
Balance at 1 April 2020 120,000 BATE 1,435,666 1,564,142
Prafit for the year 185,168 185, 168
Dther comprehentsive income {5.450) - |5,456]
Total comperehensive income for
the year - {5.456) 185,168 179,712
Balance at 31 March 2021 120,000 3,020 1,620,834 1,743,854

The above consalidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
nobes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED AND TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Consolidated Consolidated
022 021
5'000 5'000

Cash flows from eperating octivities

Met cash outflow from lending and other operating activities |2,916,400) [1,086,880]

Interest reccived 916,572 918,785

Short term lease payments [246) |282]

Rental income received 412,764 406,690

Interest paid {306, 649) {341,608)

Term deposit withdrawn/[made) 554,000 {554,000]

Incoma taxes paid 1111,426) (64, 228]
Net cash outflow from operating activities {1,451,385) {721,523)
Cash flows from Investing octivities

Payments for intangible assets |30,040) |19,4439]

Payments for property, plant and equipment {6.178) |11.145)

Proceeds from sale of non-leased property, plant and

equipment 4,501 6,040

Dividends received liom associale 11,209 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities [20,418) |24,554)
Cash flows from finoncing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 21,873,508 27,073,742

Repayments of bormowings |21,605,710) [24,785.050]

Principal lease payments {6,505) |5,563]

Dividends paid vo parent {63,474) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 198,219 2,279,129
Met [deerease]fincrense in cash and cash equivalents (1,273,5E4) 1,533,062
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,471,028 1,937,976
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,197 444 3471018

The abowe consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Basis of preparation

This section describes Tavota Finance Australia Limited's [“the company”) significant accounting policies that relate to
the financal statements and notes of the accounts, If an accounting palicy relates to a particular note, the applicable
policy is contained within the relevant note. This section also shows new accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations and whether they are effective in the current fiscal year or later years.

1. Corporate information

These financial stalements cover the consalidated Tinancial statements of the consolidated entity comprising Toyota
Finange Australia Limited, as parent entity, and the entities it controlled (together referred to as the “consolidated
entity") at the end of, or during the financial year,

The company & limited by shares, Incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal place of
basiness. is:

Toyota Finance Australia Lirmited
Lavel 9, 207 Pacific Highway
ST LEONARDS, N3W, 2065

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's principal activities is included in the directors’ report on page 2,
which is not part af thee financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 24 June 2022, The company has the power to
arnend and reissue the financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial staterments are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Where necessary, comparative
information has been restated to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,

{a) Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. Toyeta Finance
Australia Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements,

Complionce with IFRS
The consolidated financial staterments of Toyata Finance Australia Limited and its controlled entities also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards |“IFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board [*1A58" ).

Application of new and revised Australian Accounting Stendards end Interpretations lssued by Australian Accounting
Standard Board

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

lanuary 2021:
Amendmenis o Australian Accounting The consolidated entity has assessed the impact of these
Standards — interest Roie Benchmark standards, amendments and intespretations and have conduded
Reform — Phose 2 for AASB 4, AASB 7, AASE 3, that these are either not redevant to the consolidated entity’s
AASH 16 & AASE 139 opefations or ame not expected to have significant impact on

consolidated entity's financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures,

10
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Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
New accounting standards, omendments and interpretations that ore not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for acoounting periods, beginning on or
after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and amendments are either not
relevant 1o the consolidated entity’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on consolidated entity’s
financial staternents other than certain additional disclosures,

Effoctive from accounting period
beginning on or after
Amendments to Australion Accounting Stondords - Classification of
Lighilities as Current or Non-current - AASE 101 1 January 2022
Amendments fo Australion Accounting Standards — Disclosure aof
Accounting Policies and Definition of Accownting Estimates [AASS 7, AASE
101, AASE 108, AASE 134 & AASE Proctice Statement 2] 1 January 2023

Historical cost conveniion
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost comvention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabifities at fair value through profit or loss (derivatives).

Golng Concern

The directors consider that the consolidated entity has sufficient resources to meet all its obligations as and when they
fall due. Therefare, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the
ennsolidated eatity will be able to realide it astets and discharge its labilities in the normal course of butineds

{b) Principles of consolidation
il Subsidiories

The censolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Toyota Finance Australia
Limited as at 31 March 2022 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Toyota Finance Australia Limited
and Its controlled entities together are referred to in the finandal statements as the consolidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all entitics {including structured entitics] over which the company has contrel, The company cantrals
an entity when the company is exposed to, or has rights 1o, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiarics are fully
consofidated from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They are deconsofidated from
the date that the control ceases,

The acquisition methed of accounting is wsed to account for business combinations by the company.

Intercompany bransactions, balences and unrealised gains on transactions between consolidated entities are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, Accounting poficies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the parent entity.

(¥} Associates

Associates are all entities over which the company has significant influence but not contral, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

The company’s share of its associates” post-acquisition profits or losses Is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income, The cumulative post-2equisition
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Basis of preparation (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{b) Principles of consalidation [continued)

(i) Associotes {continued)

movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the imeestment. Dnidends receivable from associates are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the carrying amaount of the investment.

When the company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceads its interast in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term recehvables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses, wnless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of its assoclate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity’s interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also efiminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting polickes of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the consolidated entity.

{¢} Forgign currency translation
{i} Functional and presentation currency

items incheded in the financial staterments of each of the consolidated entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates [the lunctional currency), The conselidated financial
statements are presented in Australian dollars, which B the company’s Tunctional and presentation currency.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the transliation of the net Investment In the forelgn entity from
functional to presentation cusrency is recognised in other comgrehensive income.

(i} Trensoctions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates af the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
fram the transtation at year end exchange rates of monetary 45614 and liabilities denominated in foresgn currencies ane
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented In the income statement, within interest
expense and similar charges. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented In the income statement on a
net basis within other revenue or other expenses,

{d} Rounding of amounts

The company (5 of a kind referred to in ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016,/191 relating to the “rounding off™ of amounts
in the financial statements. Amounts in the finandal statements have been rounded off in accordance with the
Instrument to the nearest thowsand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

{e) Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

Although global economies have begun o recover from the COVID-19 pandermic as many health and safety restrictions
have been lifted and vaccine distribution has increased, the COVID-19 pandemic has led, and may continue to lead, to
periodic disruption and volatility in the global capital markets and in the economies of many countries.

The negative economic conditions arising from the COVID-19 pandemic have continued to mpact certain financial
results of the consalidated entity during the financial year ended 31 March 2022 including but not limited to & decrease

in financing valume due to lower dealer inventory levels [ghobal supply challenges), which has resulted in lower levels
of subvention and incentives as well as increased competition from financial institutions,
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Basis of preparation (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{e) Coronavirus [COVID-19] pandemic [continued)

The kong-term and ultimate impacts of the social, economic and financial disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic
are unknown. The ultimate duration or possible resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic or similar public health ssues ks
also uncertain, Further, if new straing of COVID-19 develop or sufficient amounts of vaccines are not avallable, not
widely administered for a significant period of time, not used by consumers, or othersvice prove ineffective, the impact
of COVID-19 on the global ecanormy, and, in turn, the censolidated entity financial condition, liquidity and results of
operations could be material. The extension of curtailed ecomomic activities as a result of further outbreaks of COVID-
19, extended or additional government restrictions intended to slow the spread of the virus, delayed consumer response
as restrictions are lifted, ar parmanent behaviour changes in consumer spending, could have further negative impacts
on consumer economics, dealerships and auction sites, which could have a material adverse impact on the consolidated
entity futwre results of operations. In addition, a possible resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic may subject the
consolidated entity to, among several other things, increased delinguencies and defaults by its customers and dealers,
the reinstatement of certain payment relief options, dosures of manufacturing plants resulting in vehice supply
constraints, and disruption among the supply chaln and with other third-party vendors.

The consolidated entity has applied accounting estimates in the consolidaved Tinancial statements based on forecasts
of economic conditions which reflect expectations and assumptions as at 31 March 2022 about future events that the
directors believe are reasonable in the circumstances. There is a considerable degree of judgement involved in preparing
these forecasts. The underdying assumptions are also subject to uncertainties which are often outside the control of the
consolidated entity. Accordingly, actual economic conditions are likely to be different from those forecast since
anticipated events reguently do nat occur as expected, and the effect of those differences may significantly impact
accounting estimates incuded in the consalidated financial statements.

The significant accounting estimates impacted by these forecasts and associated uncertainties are related to the
expected credit losses ("ECL") calculations, The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the accounting estimates s
discussed in Notes 9 and 20, Users to the financial statements should carefully consider these disclasures in light of the
inheront uncertainty described above.

{f} Prior Year comparative

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparabile
with the current year figures
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Results for the year

This section provides further information and accounting poficies about individual line items in the consoldated
statement of comprehensive income, incleding:

interest revenue and expense

fee income on originated assets

other revenue

depreciation, write-off and amortisation

income tax expense

segment results

3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges

Consalidated Consalidated

2022 2021
5'000 S'000
(a) Interest revenue and expense
Interest revenue
Interest rivenue 915,870 918,943
Fee income recognised using the effective interest rate method 81,118 72,795
Fee expense recognised using the effective interest rate method (258, 230) (240.612)
Total interest revenua 738,758 751,126
Interest expense and similar charges
Interest expenie 243,354 282,218
Net (gain) loss on transkation of foreign currency debt (126,324) (2,065, 790
Fair walue loss [gain) on derivative financial instruments at fair value through
profit ar loss 117,540 2217217
Transaction costs 25,897 26,722
Interest on lease liabilities 903 1,196
Total interost expense and similar charges 261,370 457,563
(b) Fee income earned on originated assets
Administration and management fee 46,790 39,795
Other fees 2,773 5,283
Total fee income W.SE! H.DTE

Revenus recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclased as revenue are
net of direct sales costs and taxes,

The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future econamic benefits will ow to the consolidated entity and specific eriteria have been met. Revenue is recognised
for the major business activities as follows:

{i} Term loans and term purchase

Interest incame arising from term loans and term purchase ore recognised over the period of the contract using the

effective interest rate method, Interest income derived from term loans and term purchase B included in “interest
revenue”,
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Results for the year (continued)

3. Financing revenue and expense and similar charges (continued)
{ii] Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessar

fa)} Finance leases

Interest income derived from finance leases = recognised over the period of the contract using the effective interest
rate methed. Interest income derived from finance leases i ineluded in "interest revenue”,

{b) Operating leases

Lease rentals recelvable on operating leases are recognised on a systematic basis over the effective lease term. Income
derived from operating leases is included in “rental income on motar vehicles under operating lease”, Operating leases
had an average term of 48 months in the current period (2021: 46 months).

{iii} Fee income and expense

Fee income (establishment fee and termination lee] are recognised over the period of the contracts using the effective
imterest rate method,

Fee expense (Holdback commissien and Performance bonus) are recognised over the period of the contracts using the
effective interest rate method.,

Revenue from administration and management fees is recognised over time as the services are provided whilst other
fees are recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place

4. Other revenue

Consolidated Consolidated
2022 Fiira |
5'000 £'000
Met gain on disposal of leased and fived assots 56,643 37,101
Net insurance distribution revenue 15,520 8,989
Net matintenance revenue 13,919 11,720
Other income 1,531 1,378
Total other revenue 87,613 59,188

Met insurance distribution revenue and net maintenance revenue are recognised as the related services are performed.
Met maintenance revenue represents net income received for facilitating the provision of maintenance services on fleet
contracts. The revenue Is recognised as those services are provided. The company acts as an agent and as such presents
the revenue feceived net of associated costs in the consalidated statement ol comprehensve income, Revenue recelved
in advance of the services being provided is presented as a contract liability wntil such point as the services have been
provided. Further information in relation Lo contradt Rabilithes is presented in Note 24b,
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Results for the year (continued)
5. Depreciation, write-off and amortisation

Consolidated Consalidated

w022 021
3’000 £'000
Profit before Income tax imcludes the following specific expenses:
Depreciation on proparty, plant and egquipmant
Right-of-use assets 7.184 7,593
Leasehold Improvements 2,321 1,257
Plant and equipment 1,589 1,918
Maoter vehicles 1,889 2,010
Write-off on property, plant and equipment . 108
Total depreciation and write off 12,983 13,886
Amaortisation
Computer software development 11,691 15,229
Computer coftware write-off 1974
Total amertisation and write-off 11,691 18,203
Total depredation, write off and amortisation 24,674 32,089

Assets that are subject to depreciation, write-off and amortization are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment boss i recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to resell and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other asset groups (cash generating units),

Refer to Notes 26 to 28 for further information on depreciation, write-off and amortisation.

6. Income tax expense

The income tax expense or credit for the periad is the tax payable or receivable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilitles

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible termporary differences amd unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be avallable to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax labilities and assets are not recognised for termporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investrments in controlled entities whese the parent entity i able ta contral the timing of the reversal af the
temporary ditferences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the loreweeable future,
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Results for the year (continued)
6. Income tax expense [continued)

Consolidated Consalidated

2022 021
5'000 5000
Current tax 122,209 93,328
Deferred tax 5,967 {21,702)
Under/[Excess) provishon im prior year Lk 4,450
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 130,507 75,076
Deferred income tax expense included in Income tax expense comprises:
Increase in deferred Tax assers 6,290 26,645
Increase in deferred tax Rabilities {13,257] 4943
{6,967) 2L,702

Numerical reconcilistion of income tax expense to prima lacie lax payable:
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 445,503 260,244
Prima facie 1ax payable @ 30% 133,651 TE,073
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculation
taxable income:
Share of net profit of associate {3,235) |3,285)
Sundry items 4z 285

130,458 75,073
Deferred income tax expensef[creditirelating to prior vears 11.192) [4,447]
Under/[Excess) provision im prior year 1,241 4,450
income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 130,507 75,076

Daferred tax assets and liabilities are offsot when there i a legally enforceable right to offset current tix astets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate 1o the same taxation autherity. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the consolidated entity has a legally enforceable right te offset and intends either to setthe on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is ako recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively,

Tax consolidation legislation

The compary and its whaolly owned sustralian controlled entities have implegmented the tax consolidation legislation
fram 1 April 2003 in association with other Australian incorparated entities with commaon ownership,

0On adoption of the income tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the income tax consolidated group entered into
an income tax sharing agreement which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and several liability for iIncome
tax of the consolidated entity in the case of a default by the head entity, Toyola Mator Corporation Australia Lirnited,
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Results for the year (continued)

6. Income tax expense (continued)
Tax cansolidation legislation {continued)

As a consequence, the company Is no longer subject to income tax and does not recognise any current tax balances in
its own financial statements unless the head entity (Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited) s in default of its
obligations, or a default is probable, under the tax consolidation legislation, or the tax amounts retate Lo taxable income
imcurred prior to the implementation of the tax consolidation regime.,

The consolidated entity has also entered Into an income tax funding agreement under which the consolidated entity
fully compensates the head entity for any current income tax payable assumed and is compensated by the head entity
for any current income tax receivable. The funding amounts are determined by reference 1o the amounts recognised
im thie consalidated entity’s financial statements,

The amounts receivable/payable under the income tax funding agreement is due upon recaipt of the funding advice
fram the head entity, which & issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financal year. The head entity may
also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay income tax instalments.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with UIG 1052 Tax
Consolidation Accounting. Amounts receivable or payable under a tax funding agreement with the head entity are

recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as tax-related amounts receivable and
payable.
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Results for the year (continued)
7. Segment results

Management has determined the aperating segments based on reports reviewed by the board of directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. it categorises the operations of the business into two main business streams = retail
and fleet. Retail segment comprised of loans and leases to consumer and commercial customers including wholesale
finance consksting of loans and ballment fadlities to motor wehicle dealerships. Fleet segment comprised of loans and
leases to small businesses and fleet customers consisting of medium to large commercial chients and government bodies.
The company's business segments apoerate in Australia,

Consolidated 31 March 2022
Retall Flaet Unallocated* Total
$'000 $'000 5'000 $000
et financing revenue [excluding fee income) 319,219 71,633 149,077 539,929
Fee ncome
Fee income recognised over a period of time 33,197 13,593 - 46,790
Fee income recognised at a paint in time 3,751 917} (b1} FNE]
Other revinue
Other revenue recognised at a point in time 15,434 14,656 BE0 20,970
Met gain/{loss] en disposal of leased and fixed
asscis . 56,136 507 56,543
et aperating incoms 371,601 155,101 150,403 677,105
Tetal reporting segment operating profit 23R, 233 105,254 - 343,476
Consolidated 31 March 2021
Retail Fleet Unallocated® Total
SR—. VTS $000  $'000  §'000 000
Met financing revenue [excleding fee income) 268,880 61,480 274N 357,831
Fee moome
Fee income recognised over a period of time 27,383 12,412 - 39,795
Fee income recognised at & paint in time 3,810 1,606 {133) 5,783
Other revenue
Other revenue recognised at a point in time B426 12,450 1,211 22,0487
Met gaing{loss) on disposal of leased and fixed
assets - 37,126 {25) 37101
Net operating incoma 308,499 125,074 28,524 462,097
Tatal reporting segment operating loss 198,905 E7,305 . 2E6,300
31 March 2022
Assets Retail Fleat Unallocated Tatal
5'000 5000 5'000 5°000
Segment assets 18,208,897 4,063,617 2,919,535 25,192,049
31 March 2021
Assets Retail Fleet Unallocated Total
$'000 $000 §'000 $'000
Segment assets 16,095,973 3,553,863 4483567 24,133,403

* Unallocated incledes the activities undertaken by the centralised treasury and ancillary support functions,
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The consalidated entity's segment operating profit reconciles to consalidated profit attributable to owners as presented

in the financial statement as follows:

Consolidated Consolidated

2022 2021

$'000 $'000
Total reporting segment operating profit/{loss) 343,476 286,300
Share of net profits of assoclates accounted for using the equity method 10,781 10,950
Fair value (less)/gain 60,551 [73.030)
Other unallocated net income 30,693 36,024
Prafit before income tax 445,503 260,244
Income tax expense (130,507) [75.076)
Prefit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited 314,996 _1_35,1.53

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker who Is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments has been identified as the board of directors,
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Lending

This section focuses on the lending assets of the consolidated entity. Further information is provided on the loans and
receivables, and impairment relating to these financing assets.

8. Financing assets and moter vehicles on operating leases

{a) Loans and receivables

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Hote S'000 57000
Finmance leases 9EB,592 B7E, 200
Unearned income on Finance leases [51,177] (0,097}
Finance leases - Net 937415 828,103
Bailment stock - Net 2,504,009 2,349,059
Term loans - Net 16,705,871 14,560,675
Term purchase - Net 566,247 511,865
Net loans and receivables (net of unearned income) 20,747,632 18,249,702
Provision for impalrment of loans and receivables 9a {161, 450] 197,150
Nat loans and receivables 20,586,182 18,052,552
Maturity analysis (net of unearned income)
Current
Net loans and receivables maturing within 12 months 7,593,144 6,752,61E
Non-Current
Net loans and receivables maturing beyond 12 months 13, 154 488 11,497 084
20,747,632 18,245,702

The minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases of vehicles are as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
5'000 5000

Future minimum lease receipts under finance leases
Mot later thim one year 292,659 266,525
One to two years 251,210 118,212
Two to three years 205,575 183,274
Three to four years 149,716 129,493
Four to frve years 59,076 47 365
Ower fve years 218,456 13,331

988,592 878,200
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets and motor vehicles on operating leases [continued)
(2} Loans and receivables (continued)
Concentration of exposures

The majority of the consolidated entity’s leans and recetvables are provided 1o finance the purchase of mator vehicles
or motor dealership assets.

Recognition and derecognition

Financing assets are recognised on transaction settlernent date — the date on which the consolidated entity becomes
party to an irrevecable financing arrangement. Financing assets are inltially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receiwe cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferrad and the consolidated entity
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Clossification

Loans and recelvables ane classified at amaorticed cost based on the following factors:

#«  Their contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and
interest (“5PP1”) on the principal amount outstanding: and

=  They are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding them to collect contractual cash
flows.

SPPI: For the purpose of this assessmaent, “principal’ is defined as the Fairvalue of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount gutstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liguidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as profit margin,

Busingss model: Factors considered by the consalidated entity in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated
and reported to key management personnel and how risks are assessed and managed.

The conselidated entity classifies its financing assets into the following categories:

(i} Bailment stock

The consolidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements to motor dealers under which vehicles are
cwned by the consofidated entity but heid at the dealers’ premises as ballment stock. There i no unearned income an
bBadment stock,

Whilst the legal form of the transactions is that the vehicles are owned by the consalidated entity, the substance of the
transactions is that of secured loans to the dealers. Accordingly, the balances are disclosed as part of loans and
receivables’ in the statement of financial position,

(i} Term Loans

A term loan is a financing agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risk and rewards

incidental to the ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance income Is the portion of charges written
into finance recaivable agreements which will be earned in the future,
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8. Financing assets and motor vehicles on operating leases [continued)
{a} Leans and receivables (continued)
{iii} Term Purchase

A verm purchase is a finandng agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance income is the portion of charges written
into term purchase recelvable agreements which will be earned in the future.

{iv]Finance Lease

A finance lease is a lease agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset from the lessar to the lessee. Unearned finance income Is the portion of charges
written into finance recetvable agreements which will be earned in the future,

Subsequent measurement

Loans and recefvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
method calculation includes the contractual terms of the foan, together with all fees and transaction costs.

Aetail and wholesale finance receivables form part of the loans and receivables in the balance sheet. Unearned income
is brought to account over the life of the contracts on an effective interest method.

Modification

The consolidated entity sometimes renegotiates or atherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers.,
When this happens, the consolidated entity assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the
criginal terms by considering, amang others, the following factors:
e If the borrower & in fingncial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.
Signiticant change of the loan term and/ar interest rates when the borrawer is not in bnancial difficulty.
Insertion of collateral, other sacurity or credit enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk associated with
tha loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the consolidated entity derecognises the original financial asset and recognises
a mew asset at falr value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. If the terms are not substantially
different, the renegotistion or modification does nat result in derecognition.

Securitisation

Loans and receivabdes indude a portion of the consolidated entity™s term boans and term purchases under securitisation
within special purpose entitles. The terms of the transfer of these loans do not meet the criteria fer derecognition under
AASE 9 and are therefore recognised on the conselidated entity's statement of financial position, AASE 10 defines
contral when an investor is exposed or has rights to varable returns from its invelvement with the investee and has the
abdity to affect those returns through its power over the investes. The parent entity bears control over the spacial
purpose vehicles requiring consolidation in the financal statements.

As at the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of transferred assets held by the special purpose entities
under securitisation was $4,445,872,000 (2021 $3,619,525,000).
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Lending (continued)

b} Motor vehicles under operating lease

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Naote 5'000 5000

Qperating lease - At cost 2,749,030 2.534.928
Impairment loss 9 (30,350| |52,750)
Aceurmnulated depreciation {1,032 349| |824,8593)
Tatal motor vehicles under operating lease 1,686,331 1,597,285
Future minimum lease receipts
Mot later than one year 300,137 303,342
One to two years 151,575 138,279
Two to three years 128,340 130,439
Three o four years 60,986 4,180
Faur to five years 26,120 24,683
Over five years 11,430 13,196

T1EABE 734,519
Movements in cost, accumulated depreciation and
Feserves
Balance at beginning of period, net of residual value 1,597,285 1,567,432
Additions 634,947 558,053
Dispasals [21B,078) [240,278)
Depreciation expense [350,223) 1342,422)
Impairment reversal[loss) 33,000 14, 500
Balance at end of period, net of residual value 1,686,331 1,597,285

Bdotar vehicles under operating leases are lease agreements with individuals and businesses in which the terms of the
lease agreemant do not substantially transfer the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee,

Motor vehicles under operating lease is inclushee of the carrying value of vehicles which ceased to be rented and are
held for sale amounting to 512,324,000 24 at 31 March 2022 (2021; $10,249,000).

Assets held under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease te its estimated
residual value, Depreciation expense Is included within financing expense and similar charges.

24
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets

Consolidated Consolidated
2012 2021
5'000 5'000
[a) Provision for eredit impairment of loans and receivables
Opening balance 197,150 250,150
Bad debts written off {34,929) {51,996}
|Decrease)fIncrease in impairment loss provision [T7L) | 10,004)
Closing balance® 161,450 197,150
(b) Credit impairment loss
Recovery of bad debts written off (21,211) | 25, 650
|Becrease)/Increase in impairment loss provision (771} | 10,004}
Tatal impairment (gain)/loss (21,5832} (35,654)
(€] Non-credit impairment loss on mator vehicles under operating lease
Opening balance 52,750 67,250
Impairrment [reversal)loss [37E) (1,213}
{Decrease]fincrease in impairment loss prevision (22,024) (13,287)
Closing balance 30,350 52,750
* The batance 65 6t 31 March 2022 includes prowidion on guaranteed future value of S400.000 {2021 59,400,000 which is not cateulated

under AASH 9.

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the year ended 31 March 20322 and
that are still subject to enforcement activity is $31,792,000 (2021: 546,036,000).

The loss allowance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described balow:

=  Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to finandial instruments experiencing significant increases {or
decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit impaired in the period, and the consequent "step up™ [or “step down™)
between 12 month and lifetime ECL;

= Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as releases for financial
instruments derecognised during the period;

*  Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ["EAD")
and loss given default ("LGD") during the period, arising from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

e Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL i measured on a present value basis;
Financlal assets derecognised during the period and write-offc of sllowances related to assets that were written
off during the period; and

«  Takes Into constderation the economic condition autlook that reflects the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Retail, Whabssale and Fleet receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery of debt.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, but are not limited to, the following:

Failure of the debtor to engage with or enter into a repayment plan with the company; or

The debtor has been placed under liguidation; or

The debtor has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, and the company determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flow to repay the amaunts subject 1 write-off,

In addition to the information above further information on consolidated entity risk management framework and credit
risk can be found in Note 20,
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and the end of the annual period
due to these factors:

General approach (Retail & Wholesala)

Lifetima
ECL mot Litetime
12 meanih cradin- ECL greit-
Coraolidated 2002 ECL impalred mpaired Total
S'000 4'000 £000 5000
Cipening balince as 82 1 Agail 104,138 L% ] 16,418 156,300
Changes duse o financial swsets recognived in the opening bafanos:
» Trarvfers betanten s1ages 04,70 17 (I8 1] L
- Remeasunemint {50LE7H) 7.9a1] 18919 {29.881)
Clasing [CL of new fnamclal agsets oripnated 37,208 5198 218 4625
Financul auiets derecognised during the peiiod other than wifte-offs {15, 451) |Ra50] {2,185) {24 12€)
wizn.affy - {33,520) (33,5209
Balance #1 31 March 90,260 TLESE 11443 133,399
Lifetima
ECLmot Lifgtime
12 manth credit- ECL oredits
Consolidated 2021 EQL impalred impaired Totsd
$'000 $000 5000 s000
Qpening halisoe as 48 1 Agdil 97,533 19051 26,716 203, 300
Changes due 1o linancia| a5sels recofnised n The opimning Baance:
< Trarsfers betaeen stages 39,144 {34,163] 4,932)
+ Reimedsunement [LER: 3] 13,65%] 47,065 {3751
Cloging ECL of mirw fenameial assets oripinated FLA AN AT i, 30d 36k
Finanssal a33ets derecognised during the pencsd otber than wemte-offy {15,419 19,267] [ER T ] {2TATY
Weee-offs . : _(0a00)  (s0a00)
Halanes 52 31 March 104,138 35T 16,418 136300
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

Simplified approach (Fleet)
Lifetime BCL Lifetime BCL
mat credit- credit-
Cordolidated 2092 impained imsained Teal
Foo0 g L
Qpening balenoe an 35 1 Ageid mar 3,653 AL450
Changes dus ta linancial assel recagnived in 1he opening Balines:
- Trarnders between stages a4y i9aa)
- Remeasunement 121,254) 235 [21,064)
Closing ECL of rve fimamcial asiets originated 0,968 A65 21434
Firancial aysels gevevognised dusing the pericd alber than ware-olly |2 1%E) 1557 02,7600
ool . {1.465) i 40m
Balance ok 31 Murch 3 LT 1,838 2651
Lifetimse BCL Lifetiens ECL
mat credit- oredite
Coraalidated 2021 Impained Imgaired Todal
) 000 £'000 000
Opening balance as 3t 1 Apeil 33,406 2,954 35,450
Changos dia Do Binandial aisets recognised in 1 opining Balinos:
- Trarilors hetwden sEages Tos Tra%)
- Remeasurement |i0rEn) 2,637 §7,54%)
Clasing ECL of rew fimancial assets oripnated 7,960 503 8453
Financial sssets derecognised during the pericd other than weiie-olfs |4.042] 1140 {4, 282)
Whrine-affy - 11 556 {1509
Balance at 31 March 11,797 3,653 30,450
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

Reconciliation of the gross carrying amount of receivables for which provigion is made ane as below:

Raetail & Wholosale receivables

Litetime

ECL nost Lt ma

1} morth eredit- ECL credit-
Comalidated 2032 ECL impaired impained Tatal
o0 $'000 $'000 000

Gross canying amount as a1 1 apnd 15,724,472 443,808 43,393 1BIE1ET3
Changes due o financial avsets recognised in the opening balance:
- Trarhers between itages |65, 10| 18,357 AT N =
- Change n balince {2,800 25 FioaARG) aaT2 {2,104, 298)
Cloving ECL of new finanicial assets orignated 7.004,151 43,451 6,502 70053104
Financial assets denecognised dusing the pericd other than weiiealfs 12,648,079 [ 540) |6 E4E] {2.784.765)
Wrie-aify - REERFL] 133,5209
Balance at 31 March 17,711,146 554,240 67,310 18,342 £96

Uetime

ECL not WLifetims

12 morth crmdit- ECL credin-
Comolidated 2021 ECL impaired impained Total
5000 5000 5'000 5'000

okt garmying amoust as 8t 1 Aprd 15, 248 500 780,685 0,998 1, 246,423
Changes due to financial ssets recognived in 1he opening bstanoe:
- Trarlers hevaeen Iages 185,003 [403,706) 18,703 .
- Change = balirce [3.923,255 [FOL5T6) 16,0683 (20977, T48)
Closing ECL of mew ferurmeial asiots origmated £ 340 643 55,596 4375 5400934
Financial steets derscognised during the perod other than write-affy |3.365 715 BT |6, 385 {2,357 B5SE)
whine-alfs . 150.400) (50,8000
Balance st §1 March 15,730,472 483,808 43,593 16,361,673
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

Fleet receivables

Ufetime ECL  Uiftime ECL

not coedit- credit-
Corsolidated 2022 Irpaired impared Tatal

5'000 5000 5000

Gross gartying amount as 21 1 Apri 1,975 684 17,385 1,588,009
Changes due to financial susets recognised in the cosning batanoe:
« Tramifors hrtaden (lages 463 4637 E
- Charge m balirse (12,271 11,943 (16S 2Ld)
Closing ECL of rew fenamcial assets oripnated 1,251,264 3,769 1,255,033
Finanosal assets derecognised during the pedod other than weite offs 449, 7400 12,763 (457 50a)
Wre-offy - |1, Ac¥i) {1.404)
Balance at 31 March 2,350,304 .l.;..ﬂ! !M!H

Uketiena ECL LMetiime ECL

ned eradit- eredit-
Corsolidated 2021 Impaired impaired Tatal

5000 5000 5'000

(Iaris CArying amoint as @1 1 Apri 2,040,056 T.036 2,04 T 597
Changes due ba financial assety recogriced in the opening Balanoe:
- Trarmders between stages LA T3] 7141
- Change in halirce (369,640 [3,B%7) (372,507
Clasing [CL of few fenuscial aiiety origineded FEAOS P THR571
Financial assets derecognised dunng the penod other than were-alfs 4a1, B8 |88 (483 432y
Wite-offs . [k, 595] _§1,59¢)
Balance #1 31 March 1,975 684 12345 1,988,009
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets (continwed)

Significant accounting estimate and judgement

The consalidated entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the ECL associated with its loan and recelvable assets
carrbed at amortsed cost and motor vehicles under operating lease (exduding residual value) and recognises a loss
allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The consolidated entity uses complex models and significant
assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g the likelihood of customers defaulting and
resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues used in measuring ECL Is further
detailed in note 20.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applyng the accountng requirements for measuring ECL, such
A%0
«  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
#  Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measuremant of ECL; and
#  Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward locking sconarios for cach type of portfolio and the
associated ECL.

Measurement of the Expected Credit Loss
The measurement of ECL reflects:

An unblased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcormes;
The time valee of money; and

Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reparting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future econamic conditiens, in addition also include patential
impacts the COVID-19 pandemic presents,

Modifieations relating to COVID-19

The consolidated entity has provided several support measures for customers impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic
for the year ended 31 March 2022. These support measures include loan repayment deferrals for Retail and Fleet
customers. The repayment deferrals were a continuation of the existing loans, and therefore, accounted for as non-
substantial loan modifications.

Retail loans with gross carrying value of approximately 557,300,000 (31 March 2021: $118,300,000) were subject 1o
COVID-19 retated repayment support at the time that they were incheded in the lifetime ECL provisien, Of these
exposures, loans with gross carrying value of approximately $18,700,000 {31 March 2021: $66,100,000) have changed
to a 12-month ECL as at 31 March 2022, For Floet, all loans are included in the lifetime ECL s the consolidated entity
uses a simplified approacdh,

Retail and Fleet customers requiring further assistance post the end of deferrals are managed on a case-by-case basis.

In addition to the information above further information on how the consolidated entily manages credit risk can be
found in Note 20,
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Funding

In this section, the focus Is on debt funding of the consolidated entity. Further information is provided on debt issuance
and credit facilities available to manage Lguidity risk.

10. Due to banks and other financial institutions

31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
4000 5000

Banks and other financial institutions 4,757,304 4,115,458
Tatal due to banks and ather financial institutions 4,757,304 4,115,458
Maturity analysis
Current
Banks and aother financial institutions 1,825,097 2,524,735
Non-Current
Banks and ather financial institutians 2,832 207 1,550,723

4,757,304 4,115,458

Incheded in the "Duee to banks and other financial institutions” is securitised debt of 53,523,295,000 as at 31 March 2022
(2021 52,880,%900,000] representing the value of term loans held by external parties in the spacial purpose entities. The
spedal purpose entities issued interest-bearing notes to third parties amounting to 53,523,295,000 as at 31 Marnch 2022
(2021: $2,880,900,000). The company haolds the balance of the cpecial purpose entities of 592,577,000 ac at 31 March
2032 (2021 $738,625,000]. $4,445,872,000 loans and receivables are pledged as collateral for the senior notes under
securitisation as at 31 March 2022 (2021: $3,615,525,000].

The Interest payable on the secured notes as at 31 March 2022 amounted to 5788000 {2021: 5672,000) and s included
in “accrued interest payable®, Contractual maturity of the securitised debt is 25 Movember 2027 and 20 March 2028
and with interest rate of 0.765% and 0.715% respectively paid out manthly,

E|
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Funding {continued)

11. Bonds and commercial paper

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
4000 4'000

Commercial paper 4,768,914 4 BER,925
Medium term notes 12,110,729 12,164,260
Total bonds and commerclal paper 16,379,643 16,851,185
Maturity analysis
Current
Bonds and commercal paper 7,139,956 8,030,742
Noa-Current
Bonds and commaercial paper 8,239,637 8,820,443

16,379,643 16,851,185

Bands and commercial paper sfe initially recagnised a1 fair value, nel of bransacthon costs incurred, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redempticon
amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the bonds or commercial paper using the effective
Iinterest method. Interest rates range from 0.5% to 3.5% on these papers and notes.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financal liability are included in the initial
recognition of the financial instruments,

Holders of any outstanding bonds, debentures, notes and other investment securities and commercial pager
summarised in the tables abave have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by Japanese law, one between

Toyota Motor Corporation |“TMC") and Toyota Financial Services Corporation {“TFSC) dated 14 July 2000, and the
other between TFSC and the company dated 7 August 2000,
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Funding {continued)

12, Securitisation and transferred assets

In the normal course of business, the consolidated entity enters into transactions by which it transfers financial assets
to special purpose entities. These transfors do not give rise to derecognition of those financial assets for the
consolidated entity,

Securitisation

Term loans securitised under the company’s securitisation programs are equitably assigned to bankruptcy remate
spedial purpose entities. The consolidated entity is entitbed to any residual income of the securitisation program after
all payments due to Investors have been met. in addition, where derivatives are transacted between the special purpose
entities and the parent, such that the parent retains exposure bo the variability in cash flows fram the transferred term
lpans, the lgans will continue to be recognised on the parent’s balance sheet, The investors have full recourse only 1o
the term loans segregated into the special purpose entities,

Consolidated Consolidated

2022 021

$'000 £'000
Carrying amount of transferred assets a,445 872 3,619,529
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 3,523,295 2,880,900
Het position for carrying amount 522,577 738,625
Fair value of tronsferred ossets 4,760,640 3,ES0,494
Fair value of associaved liabilities 3,548,540 2,503,041
et pesition for falr value amount 1,212,100 967,453

i3
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Funding {continued)
13, Credit facilities
Consolidated Consolidated
202 021
£'000 $'000

Amount available:
Bonds, eommercial paper, term loans and ather short term Darrowings 38 655 658 29, B58,365
Bank overdraft 15,000 15,000
Securitisathon
-Sanior Mota 4,590,000 4,550,000
~Mezzanine Note 1,210,000 1,210,000
Amount utilised:
Bonds, commercial paper, term loans and other short term borrowings T 158,130,381
Bank overdraft
securitisation
-Senior Mote 3,523,195 2,550,900
-Mezzanine Mate 922,577 738,525
Amount not utilised:
Bonds, commercal paper, term loans and other short term borrowings 20,999,762 11,727,984
Bank owerdraft 15,000 15,000
Securitisation
-Senior Mote 1,066,703 1,709,100
Maezianine Nate 287,423 471,375

Medium term note, commercial paper programs, term loans and other short term borrowlings

Medium term note and commarcial pager programs allow the company to issue medium term notes and commerdial
paper in either Australian or overseas markets up to a total of 531, 884,097,000 (2021; S24,074,833,000).

The company has access to 51,685,000,000 of uncommitted facilities (2021: 52,021,967,000) and $400,000,000 of
committed (acilities (2021: $400,000,000] from various banks, The company also has 5 $1,335,203,000 facility available
with Toyota Maotor Cradit Corparation (2021: $1,313,111,000) and a 53,351,359,000 facility available as part of Toyota
Group Master Cradit Facility (2021: 52,048,454,000] as at 31 March 2022

Credit support agreement

Halders of debt securities issued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governod by
lapanese law, one between TMC and TF5C dated 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the company dated 7
August 2000 (together, the "Credit Support Agreements”),

Halders of such securities will have the right 1o claim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective
obligations under the Credit Support Agreements by making a written claim together with a declaration to the effect
that the holder will have recourse to rights given under the Credit Support Agreements. |f TRSC andfor TME receive such
a clalm from any holder of such securithes, TFSC andfor TMC shall indemnify, withowt any further action or formality,
the holder against any loss or damage resulting from the fallure of TFSC andfor TMC to perform any of thelr respective
ohligations under the Credit Support Agreements, The holder of such securities who made the claim may then enforce
the indemnity directly against TFSC and/far TMC,
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Funding [continued)

13, Credit facilities (continued)

Credit support agreement [continued)

In consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into between TF5C
and the company as at 30 March 2001. The Credit Support Fee Agreement provides that the company will pay to TFSC
a fee cquivalent to o percentage of the weighted sverage outstanding amount of the company's medium term notes

and cammereial paper that have the benefit of the Credit Suppart Agreements,

Thae directors are not aware of any instances of a written claim and declaration under the terms of the Credit Support
Agreements, in connection with the company”™s outstanding medium term notes and commercial paper.

Master credit facility ("MCF”)

354 Doy Credit Agreement, Three Yeor Credit Agreement and Five Fear Credit Agreement

The MCF between the company and other Toyota affiliates was renegotiated in November 2021 where a US35.0 billien
354-day syndicated bank credin facility, expiring in November 2022 was renewed, The US55.0 billlon three year
syndicated bank credit facility and the US35,0 billion five year syndicated bank credit facility, expiring in Novemnber 2023,
and 2025, respectively, that were entered into during November 2021 remained in place,

The ability to make drawdowns is subject to covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, including
negative pledge provisions, cross-default prowvisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers and sales of
assets. These agreements may be used for general corporate purposes and none was drawn upon asat 31 March 2022,
The company is in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the credit agreaments described above.

Bank overdraft

Thie bank everdraft is an unsecured $15,000,000 facility 25 at 31 March 2022 {2021: $15,000,000]. Interest i charged
at prevailing market rates, The bank overdraft is payable on demand and subject to annual review,
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Capital management

This secthon covers the capital structure of the consolidated entity.

14. Contributed equity

Contributed equity

At 31 March 2022 there were 120,000,000 ardinary shares fully paid,
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Consolidated Consolidated
2022 2021
s'0o0 5'000

1200000 120,000

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the procesds on winding up of the consolidated entity

in propartion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands, every holder of ardinary shares present at & meeting in person or by proxy s entithed to one vote

and, upon a poll, each share is entitled Lo one vole,

15. Reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance as at 1 Apeil

Met exchange differences on translation of foreign associate entity
Batance at 31 March

Foreign currency translation reserve

Consolidated Consolidated
2022 2021
o000 000

3,020 BA47%
1.109 15,456]
4,129 3,020

Exchange differences arising on translation of investrments accounted for using the equity method is taken to the foreign
currency translation reserve. The reserve is subsequently recognised in prafit and less when the net investment is

disposed af.
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Capital management (continued)

16. Retained carnings
Consolidated Consolidated
2022 2021
5000 $'000
Opening balance 1,620,834 1,435,666
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 314,996 185,168
Dividend paid (63,474}
Balance at the end of the period 1,872,356 1,620,834
Dividends
Fully-franked final dividend for tha year ended 31 March 2022 of nil cents
{31 March 2021: 43,55 cents] per fully paid share 63,474 *
Total dividends paid 63474 -

Under the income tax conselidation regime, the franking account balance of the company as at 1 April 2003 was
permanently transferred 1o the head ontity of the consolidated tax group, The company ceases to have a franking
account during the time it remains a member of the consolidated group.

The income tax consolidation rules do permit the company to pay a franked dividend ta its shareholder with the head
entity's franking account bearing a reduction for the franking credit attached to the dividend, Dividends paid in the year
ended 31 March 2022 were fully franked; no dividends were paid in the year ended 31 March 2021

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

Since the year end the directors have recommended the payment of a final fully franked divided of 76.05 cents per Tully

paid ordinary share (2021: 43.55 cents). The amount of the proposed dividend expected to be paid on or before 30 lune
2022 out of retained earnings as at 31 March 2022, but not recognised as a Nability at year end, is 591, 264,000,

Ex)
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Financial instruments and risk

This section covers the financial instruments held by the consolidated entity including derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments and financial risk management information.

17. Derivative financial instruments

Consolidated Consolidated
2022 2021
S'000 $'000

Agsots
Interest rate swap contracts 319,315 B6,161
Cross curmency swap contracts B453 40,559
Forward foreign exchange contracts = 31,794
Derivative financial instrument assets 327,768 158,514
fdd/[Less): Bilateral credit valuation adjustments {"CVA") 2,339 2,910
Tatal derivative financial instrument assets - measured at fair value 330,107 161,424
Liabilities
Interest rane Swap contracts 72454 12K,682
Cross currancy swap contracts 1,046 691 625,501
Forward forelgn exchange contracts ) 132,679 24,458
Total derivative financial instrument liabilities - measured at fair value 1,251,824 T7E 41
Current derivative financial Instruments
Derivative financial assets - current 18,495 65,140
Derivative financial liabilities - current 356,230 93,317
Derivative financlal assets - non-current 311,612 96,284
Derivative financial liabilities - non-current BO5,594 BB5,324

The consolidated entity uses derivatives not designated in a qualifying hedging relationship, to manage its exposure 1o
foreign currency and intérest rate risks. Derivative financial assets and labilities are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each
reparting period. The derivatives have not been designated as hedging instruments conseguently, changes in the fair
walue of derivatives are recognised immediately in profit or loss as interest expense and simdlar charges. This may, to
the extent that they are not offset by the transltation of the items economically hedged, intreduce volatility in the
consolidated entity’s profit or loss and produce anomalous results,

Fair value estimation

The fair value of the financial instruments that are nol traded n an active market [over-the-counter denvatives] is
derermined using valuation techalques, Thi fair value of FRterest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is determined wsing
the forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.,

The following market inputs and methods are used determing falr value of financial instruments:

#  Market mid rataes, being the average of bid and ask prices, for interest and foreign exchange rates

= Market rates are captured at Tokyo close on the last business day of the preceding month

& Cash flows for interect rate and eross currency dwaps are discounted at risk free rates known as evernight index
swap [015) rates

«  Forvariable interest rabe instruments, future interest rate sets are estimated fram Interest rate swap curve ol the
same currency and interest rate period

38
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
17, Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Fair walue estimation [continued)

« Forward revaluation approach is used for foreign exchange contracts, whereby:
o Forward exchange rates are determined by combining spot exchange rates and forward points; and,
o Forward exchange rates are then used 1o conver fareign currency cash flaws to the reparting curmency 10
determine the value on settlement date, without discounting back 1o the vakeation date

Bilateral eradit valuation adjustments

The credit valuation adjustment is an adjustment to the fair value of the derivative instruments to account for the
counterparty credit risk ["CCR®). It is the credit spreads of both the group and the counterparty, together with market
factors, that drive the bilateral eredit valuation adjustments,

Accounting estimates

The consolidated entity applies accounting estimates and assumptions to make reasonable judgements on carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities. One area that invelves some level of estimates or complexity of assumptions is
derivative finandal instruments.

Falr walue hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair values, by valuation method, The different levels are
defined as follows:

Level 1! guoted prices [unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabdlities

Level 2; inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or bability, either
direetly (i.8. as prices) ar indirectly (e derived frarm prices)

Lewel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

The consolidated entity’s financial instruments that are measured and recognised at fair value are derivative assets and
derivative labilities used for hedging [i.e. interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts).
While these instruments are used for econamic hedging, the consalidated entity does not apply hedge accounting.

31 March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
$'000 5'000 $'000 5'000
Derivative financial azsets through profit or lozs
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Foreign exchange contracts - - - -

Interest rate swap contracts - 319315 - 319,315
Cross CUFrency swap contracts . 8453 . £.453
Add: Bilateral CVA B 1339 - 2,339
Total financial assets - 330,107 - 330,107

Derivative financial Habilities through profit or loss
Derivatives used Tor economic hedging

Fereign exchange contracts - 132679 - 132,679

Interest rabe swap contracts . 72454 E 72,454

Cross currency swap contracts - 1,046,691 - 1,046,591

Total financial liabilities - 1,251,824 - 1,251,824
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

17. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Fair walue higrarchy {continued)
31 March 2021 Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
5'000 5000 5'000 5'000
Derivative financial assets through profit or lozs
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Foreign exchange contracts - 31,794 - 31,794
Interest rate swap contracts - 86,161 - BB, 161
Cross currendy swap contracts - 40,559 - 40,559
Add: Bilateral CVA - 2,910 : 2,910
Total financial assets - 161,424 - 161,424
Derivative financial Habilities through profit or loss
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Fareign exchange contracts 24,458 . 24,458
Interest rate swap contracls ' 138,682 . 128,682
Cross currendy swap contracts . 625,501 . 625,501
Total financial liabilities = 778,641 - 778,641

18. Non-derivative financlal instruments

Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial agse15 and financial llabilities must be estimated lor recegnition and measurement or for
distlosure purpeses, Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for financial instruments.

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and the fair values of those financial assets and Habilities not
presented on the consolidated entity's balance sheet at fair value.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amouwnt Fair value
S000 5'000 5'000 5'000
Financial assets
Loans and recenvabiles 20,586,182 20,457,918 18,052,558 19728614
Term deposits 554,000 554,995

10,586,182 20,457,918 18,606,552 20,283,609

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 4,757,304 4,797,654 4,115,458 4,145,305
Bonds and commerclal paper 16,379,643 15,471,913 16,851,185  17.403,150

21,136,947 21,269,567 20,966,643 21,548,455

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade recelvables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values due to their short verm nature, The fair value of term deposits is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the consolidated entity for similar financial
instruments. The fair value of the loans and receivables is estimated at portfolio level by discownting the contractual
cash flows using current lending rates. The fair value of financial labilities is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the consoldated entity for sirmilar financial
nstruments. All the non-derivative financial assets and kabilities are level 2 a5 per the valuation hierarchy with the
mxception of securitised debt under Due 10 banks and other linancial institutions which is classitied as Level 3,
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
19. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are affset and the net amount reparted in the statement of financial position where the
consolidated entity currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is intention to
settle om a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The consolidated entity has also entered
into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but stdl allow for the related amounts te be set off in
certaln cireumstances, such as ratings downgrade or event of defauln

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master

netting arrangements but not offset, as at 31 March 2022. The column ‘net amount’ shows the impact on the
consolidated entity's statement of financial position if set-off rghts were exercised.

Ifects af oifvetting: on the stafement of

Comalidated Financisl posftion Relsied smounts not offser
Gaois et
amourls amounis
set-oif presented Amounts
the in the subject to
wtEement tatemant [T
Grows ol financial  of finangial natting Cash Mot
amounis position poaition smangements  Collateral amosnt
£'000 5'000 5'000 £7000 S'000 £'000
piir k]
Firantial aviet
Cash and cash equsvalents (b) 1,197,444 - 2137884 ] 1157448
Term depasits {b) a . - s -
Loani and recaivalie: 20,586,182 - M15B6,182 = - 0586187
Deevivanhve Bnintial iruments (B 330907 - 330,100 |2 3E 0 | | 1650004 75,9371
Oher asaets (a) 134083 (#0,519) 213,534 |82, 500) £1434
b o 3ATTHE  [I0.S19)  IRNIT26T _@EImos] (330.000) 22,TSALE)
Fimsaeial Rabilities
Dwe 1o banks and other financial instiutions (b} 4,757,304 #7530 4,757 304
Deevrvative fenaencial nvstruments {b) 115184 -+ L25LA24 [ZIB044)  (L62I00) 851,680
ke liabibies [3) 675310 (M0510) 654,801 -~ |3smoog) 435801
Total 5,684,448 |20.518) 6,663,929 [23m044]  (33L000]  BOS4TES
Hr
Financial sssets
Cash and cash eguevalents (b 3,471,018 « 3471028 . - 34TIOI8
Term deposits {b) 554,000 : 554,000 - - 554,000
Loans and receivabies 18,052 553 - 1B052.552 - - IRDE2SS2
Derrvittive Enancial istruments {b) 161,434 161,424 (140,732} [FER el BE42
Cither assets [a) 113,705 (24,941 BB, 764 - |44,500) A4 154
Tetl 22,352,769 [34.941)  32.027,768 [E40.TBZ)  (55,700)  22,13036
Financial Rabilitses
Dwe o banks and cther financial institutions (b} 4,115,458 4,115,458 4115458
D e Binancial ivir bl TIREL] . TR, 641 | 24D, 73T [EERe ] 593300
Cnbr liabsiigiog (o) 533347 ihd a41) A0H, 406 - | R A 486 306
Total 5,417 445 [14541) 5392505 (140, 733) |56, 7o) 5,155 073
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Financial instruments and risk (eontinued)

19. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities [continued)
(2] Offsetting arrangements

Other assets and labilities

On the whaolesale dealer statements, monthly financing and other receivables from dealerships are offset against
manthly commissions and other payables to dealerships. The amounts are settled and presented net in the statement
of financial position.

(b} Master netting arrangements and set-off arrangements — not eurrently enforceable

Derivative transactions with counterparties are covered by ISDA agreements; term loans, term deposits and cash
deposits are covered by standard agreements. Under the terms of these arrangements, upon an event of default, a
ratings downgrade to a certain level or an early termination event, the net amount owing to, or receivable from, a
counterparty in the same currency will be taken as due and the arrangement will be terminated. Since no such event
subsists and the consaldated entity has no other legally enforcaable right of set-off, these amounts have not been set
off in the statement of financial position but have been presented separately in the table above. Collateral may be
posted daily in respect of certain derivatives transacted with any counterparty covered by a Credit Support Annex for
Variation Margin agreements.

20. Financial risk management

The consolidated entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk, lguidity risk and residwal value risk, The consofidated entity's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and used vehicle markets and seeks to manage potential
adverse effects on the financial perlormance of the consolidated entity,

The consolidated entity does not enter into ar trade firancial instruments, iru:fudinu. dherivative financial instruments,
for speculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage the consolidated entity’s exposure to
currency risk and Interest rate risk. The reslduzl value risk of the consolidated entity arises mainly from recelvables
under operating lease and loans with guaranteed future value,

Risk management is overseen by various committees and departments based on charters approved by the senior
management in accerdance with the company’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework. These include:

Enterprise Risk Management

Emterprise Risk Management process |s established with the purpose of driving an appropriate risk culture across the
enterprise and enabling the arganisation to achieve its business goals. This function is discharged by the Senior Executive
Team ["SET™),

Asset Liability & Pricing Committee

The Asset Liability & Pricing Committes meels 10 assess new business marging in connectizn with volume and interest
rate requirements, and a changing interest rte and competitor enviranment. The committen also collaboratively
manage and menitor the inberest rate and liquidity risks of the consolidated entity.

The consolidated entity’s treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks, The treasury department
implements the conselidated entity’s policies to manage the consolidated entity’s foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, Houidity risk and credit risk with banks and other financial intermediaries.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)
Retail Credit Committee

The Retasil Credit Risk Committes i responsible for the risk assessment, ongoing management, collection, enforcement
and write-off of monies lent by the company to retail customers. The committee ensures that the core credit operations
of the company are aligned with the corporate goals and objectives,

Commercial Credit Risk Committee

The Commercial Credit Risk Committee is responsible for the risk assessment, ongoing management, collection,
enforcement and write-off of monies lent by the company to commercial customers. The committes ensures that the
core credit operations of the company are aligned with the corporate goals and objectives.

Asset Risk Committee

The Asset Risk Committes undertakes to measure and assess residual values on assets based on best practice and critical
wariabbe information such as wsed car market dynamics, ecaonomic conditians, governmaental palicies/regulations, the
credit market and the conditions of assets under leasefwith guaranteed future value, It reports all matters with potential
impact on residual wvalue of assets and all other matters which would mitigate potential residual value risks to the
consolidated entity.

Audit Commities

The Audit Committes i tasked to assist the Board of Directors of the company and management in the exercise of its
oversight responsibilities over the systems of internal control, internal audit activities and ensuring regular
commaunication amangst the Audit Committes, managemant, sxternal audit and internal audit.

Compliance Committas

The Compliance Committee is responsible for the establishment, publication and maintenance of the compliance
framewark (o manage the consolidated entity’s compliance with all the laws, regulations and codes of practice that
apply to the business and the maintenance of the company’s ACL and AFS Licenses,

Internal Audit

The intemnal audit department provides independent, objective assurance and consulting activities designed to add
walue and improve the consolidated entity's operations, It assists management in identifying and mitigating risks, and
recognising kaizen opportunities through its review of business processes, systems, controls, environment and activities.

Data Governance Committes

The Data Governance Committee has cxecutive data stewardship respansibilitics with focus on treatment of data as a
company asset with value, setting and management of data governance initiatives, sponsoning data governance product
development, data-related risk and issue management and resolution, oversight of data management activities and
escalation.

Voice of Customers Commilttes
The rale of the Voice of Customer Committee is to align with the company’s Corparate Visian and ensure the customer
is at the heart of everything we do, ensure a ‘customer lens’ is incorporated into all actions wndertaken within the

company, work cross functionally to solve customer pain points thus delivering a superior customer experience and
review actual against planned customer and business benefits,
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market risk

{i} Foreign exchange risk

The consolidated entity operates in international eapital markets to abtain debt funding to suppert its earning assets.
Transactions may be denominated in foreign currenches, exposing the consolidated entity to foreign cxchange risk
arising from various currency cxpaunes,

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and Nabllities deneminated in a currency that is not the consolidated
entity's functional eurrency and net investments in foreign operations. The risk s measured using debt maturity analysis.

Management has set up a policy reguining the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange risk against its

functional currency. The consolidated entity is required to economically hedge 100% of its foreign exchange risk at the

time of debt issuances. Derivative finandal instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to hedge its

exposure to foredgn currency risk, Including:

*  Forward exchange contracts 1o hedge the foreign currency risk arising on the issue of commercial paper in foreign
currencies and affdiated entity loan; and

=  Crods currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with foreign ourrency
denominated medium term notes, bank loans and commercial paper.

The consalidated entity’s net expesure Lo fareign currency risk at the end of the reparting period ended 31 March 2022
is immaterial, There has boen no change in this pesition when compared to the repoerting period ended 31 March 2021,

{ii] Cash flow and falr value interest rate risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will Mucluate

because of changes in market interest rates, The condolidated entity is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the

prevailing levels of market interest rates as it borrows and lends funds at both fleating and fiked interest rates.

Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consclidated entity to economically hedge its exposure to cash

flow and fair value interest rate risk, including:

*  Fined-to-floating Interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity's
earning assets, Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting loans and receivables from fixed
rates to floating rates;

&  Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity's
functional currency denaominated fixed rate medium term notes and bank loans. Such interest rate swaps have the
econamic effect of converting barrowings from fixed rates to floating rates; and

- Cross currency swaps to manage the forelgn currency and Interest rate risk associated with foreign currency
denominated medium term notes, commercial paper and bank loans. Such cross currenty swaps have the
ecanamic effect ol converting barrowings from loreign denominated fined or Moating rates to functional currency
floating rates.

Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals
{mainly guarterly], the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by
reference 1o the agreed notional principal amounts. Under the eress currency swaps, the consolidated entity agrees
with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foreign currency principal and fixed (or floating) rate interest
amounts, and functional currency principal and floating rate interest amounts calculated with reference to the agreed
functional currency principal amount.

The consolidated entity’s palicy i to maintain most of N5 debl exposwre in its functional currency at floating rate, using
interest rale Swaps or cross curtency swaps ta achieve this when necessary.

The following table details the consolidated entity’s exposure ta interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)
{a] Market risk (continued)

{ii} Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

Wariable Fiund bbeniit Mo Intanest

ItEnEEt Rt Rale Bimring Tatal
Cordolidated 2022 5000 5000 4000 5000
Operating lease receivables - 1,706 681 - 1, I ERY
Financlal assets
Cath and kguid et 1,107,444 - - 2197404
Taem dppisity . . - .
Loans and recevahles 4575 538 1617107 20, T 631
Interesd rate siags 11,921,500 £12,921,500)
Other asgets 162,100 gt T 51,434 _ HIREM
Taotal finandisl asiats 1RELG560 4,067, 1EE G141 FER TS
Fimanclal Kabilitses
Hanks and aiber Prancisl indrituissns 4,757,504 = - 4,757,304
Commercial papss 4. 68ala . - 4,268 914
definam tevm nobes 1,223,756 10,85, 533 - 12,110,728
Crons cerrency Twaps 9,184,809 {9, LB, HO3)
HIETESE FALE YW 1567096 (2,567 096) - E
Other labilies 168,30 s AR5, 500 B3 ED]
Uik Balsinies - 35.731 - 15,731
Total financial labiities 22,170,913 (829,235) 485,800 21,827,479
Met financial assets/{liabilites) 12,304 304) 5,796,523 |834,367) 3,047,802

Warlsbile Fined bntenest Mon Intenest

Intenrit Rate Rste Beraring Tuatal
Corolidated 2021 Foo0. $'000 000, 000
Qperating leaso receivables . B,E50,054 - 1,630,034
Fimnaricial assets
Cavh st bgquidd svirts 1ATLOZA - - 3,471,038
Term deposity - 54,000 - 554,000
Lioans and receleaties 4,120,742 14,128,960 . 18,345, 701
MlETESl FAtE YWaDS 11614500 112,614,500 . .
Cther aszets 48600 - 44,164 i Tl
Taotsd finandiad asiet 20,350,820 LA E T 44,164 24,011,528
Financlal labilithes
Banks and olfer Fmangial ingli it 1154850 - - a4, 115458
Cammential papss A GG a8 . A BRE 9Xh
Iediuam tewm nabes E73,952 11,290,168 13,554 150
Cross CLITENDY BWARS £ &5, 756 (B, B35, 75E)
ElevEst rale swags 3037,596 §3,037.59&)
Otk llatilerios 12,100 ARG, 106 455406
Lo Babdliims 41,950 41,550
Fouel Hnanulel Retier ZERLEZE (601133 485,306 21506,993
Met financlal assets/{liabilites ) |1,370,957] 4,319,628 |447, 1482} 2,506,523
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management [continued)

{a] Market risk {continued)

{iii} Interest rate benchmark reform

Following the financial erisis, the reform and replacement of benchmark interest rates such as GBP UBOR and ather
interbank offered rates ("IBORs') has bocoame a priority for global regulators. In March 2021, the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA} anngunced that sterling, euro, Swiss franc, lapanese yeon, as well a5 1 week and 2 month US LIBOR
benchmarks will cease at end 2021, with the remaining US LIBOR benchmark ceasing at end June 2023,

As at 31 March 2022, the consolidated entity does not hold any floating rate foreign currency debt, nor hold any cross
currency Swaps which reference LIBOR benchmark rates subject to benchmark reform, However, the Consolidated
Entity changed its valsation, fram LUBOR to risk free rate dacounting, to reflect current market practices as benchmark
reform has affected the availability of certain reference interest rate curves.

{iv] Sensithvity

The consolidated entity’s financial resuls are exposed 1o INTEFESL rale Movements in the market. Shown below is the
potential impact of a 1% increase in interest rate on the consolidated entity’s pre-tax profits for the next twelve months.,
A 1% decrease in interest rate has an opposite impact of the same amount, subject to interest rate floor.

Consolidated Consolidated

2022 2021
4'000 £'000
Increase/{ Decrease) on pre-tax profits {2,300) 1,135

(b} Cradit rigk

The consolidated entity 1akes on exposurs to crodit risk, which is the rigk that counterparty will cause a financial loss for
the consolidated entity by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from lending activities for
financing assets, funding activities such as cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions and
desivative financial instruments.

{i} Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for ECL models
Assessment of significant increase tn credit risk

when determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial recognition, the consolidated
entity considirs bath quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the consolidated entity's histarical
euperience and expert oredit risk assessment, incuding forward -looking information.

Retail facilities use the number of days past due ["DPD” ) to determine significant increase in credit risk. The consolidated
entity considers that significant increase in credit risk occurs when an asset is equal and more than 30 DFD,

Far non-retail facilities, internally derived credit ratings have been kdentified as representing the best available
determinant of cradit risk. The consolidated entity has adopted the Global Master Grading Maodel, which was initially
developed by Toyota Fimancial Services Corporation and cailbrated to the Australian market. The grading model
comprises 11 grading levels for instruments not in default (1 to 11) and one default class (12), The consolidated entity
assigns each facility a credit rating, at initial recognition based on available information about the borrower. Credit risk
i deemed to have increased significantly if the credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date rolative
to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management [continued)

{b) Credit risk [continwed)

{i} Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for ECL models [continued)
Definition af Defoult

In assessing the impairment of financial asscts under the expected eredit loss model, the consalidated entity defines a
receivable asset as credit impaired if a default rating s assigned to this asset in accordance with its credit policy and
procedures. Credit impalred exposure under the expected credit loss model consists of:

#  FRetail loans and non-rated fleet loans which are contractually 90 days past due.
e Credit exposures when it becomes obvious that the custamers are no longer able 1o meet their financial
obligations as they fall due.

Clcutation of expected credit loss

Expected cridit losses are calculated using three main compangnis: PD, LGD and EAD, These parameters are generally
derived from internally developed statistical models combined with historical, current and forward-bal:ir!g customer
and macro-economic data.

For accounting purposes, the 12 menths and lifetime PD represents the expected point-in-time probability of a default
over the naxt 12 months and remaining |ifetime of the finandal instrument, respectively, based on conditions existing
at the balance sheet date and future economic conditions that affect credit risk. The LGD represents expected loss
conditional on default, taking into account the mitigating offect of collateral, its expected value when realised and the
time value of moneay.

The EAD represents the expected exposure at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from
the balance sheet date to the default event together with any expected drawdown of a facility. The 12 months ECL is
equal to the discounted sum over the next 12 months of monthly PO multiplied by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is
calculated using the discounted surm of monthly PD over the full remaining lfe multiplied by LGD and EAD.

incorporation of forward-looking information

The consolidated entity has considered a range of relevant forward-looking Australia®s macre-economic scenarios and
assumptions for the determination of unbiased economic forecast and industry adjustment that support the calculation
of probability weighted expected loss.

The consolidated entity engages Moody's Analytics to obtain their forecasts for the following macroeconomic variables
wsed by the Z-score model to include the impact of various macroeconomic scenarins in the ECL provision, inputs
considered in the I-score are:

real gross domestic product (GDP) growth rate
unemployment rate

cash rate

house price index

AUD/USD exchange rate, and

stock market index.

These reflect reasonable and supportable forecasts of future macro-economic conditions that include, but are not
limited to, unemployment, interest rates, gross domestic product and house price index, and require an evaluation of
bath the eurrent and forecast direction of the macia-economic cycle.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

(b} Credit risk (continued)

(i} Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used for ECL models (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information Increases the degree of judgement required as to how changes in these
macro-econamic factors will affeet ECLs. For 31 March 2022 ECL cabeulation, the consolidated entity has considered
three forward-looking scenarios:

Base Scenario at 50% welghting: Under this scenario, the recovery is back on track after extended lockd'owns in several
states stalled activity. The vaccination drive overcomes supply hurdles and herd resillence is achleved CY 2021, Macro-
economic factors incorporated in this scenario Includes:

#  Full-year GOP growth is estimated at 4.2% in C¥ 2022, followed by a 2.1% growth in CY2023.

=  Forward-looking labour market indicators confirm the recovery has taken hold, Moody's Anahitics expects to
see the unemployment rate at 5% on average in CY2022,

= There was imited evidence of a demand-induced decline In prices. Consumer Price Index (CPI) estimated to
rise 2.7% on average in CY2022.

Upside Scenario at 5% weighting: Under this scenario, the economic activity is assumed to accelerate faster than in
the baseline scenario, as businesses respond to improved demand conditions, boosted by fiscal stimulus and better
than expected vaceing availability. Macro-economic factors incarparated in this scenario inchedes:

= Real GOP rebounds 65.9% in CY2022 and grows 3.1% in CY2023.
&  The unemployment rate at 4.7% on average in CY202 2.
= CPlrises 3.7%in OY2022,

Recession Scenario at 45% weighting: Under this scenario, it is assumed that daily confirmed COVID cases are above
the baseline projections, coronavirus-related restrictions on travel are slower to ease and it takes longer 1o stem
business closures, Macro-economic factors Incorporated In this scenario includes:

+  GDP contracts for a sustained period due to the extremely slow wind-down of restrictions, as well as caution
on the part of businesses and consumers. Real GOP on an annual average basis, contracts by 2.6% in CY2022
and 1.3% in CY2023,

= The unemployment rate at 6.4% on average in Y2022, triggening a deep cut in household consumption and
wage growth in 2022,

# (Pl rises 0.9% on average in CY2022

As at 31 March 2027, the ECL under the Base, Upside and Recession scenarios would be 584,076,000, 565,690,000 and
$229,957,000 respectively [2021: 5110,249,000, 5100,877,000 and $147,177,000). The consolidated entity has also
applied overlays of approximately 512,197,000 { 202 1; $54,074,000). The weighted ECL recognisad as at 31 March 2022
s 5161,050,000 | 2021: 5187, 750,000]).

Nature and effect of modifications an the measurement of provision for doubtful debts

A loan that i renegotiated Is derecognised if the existing contract Is cancelled and a new agreement made on
substantially different terms or If the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the renegotiated loan Is
substantiafly a different instrument. Where such loans are derecognised, the renegotiated contract is a new loan and

impairment 5 assessed in aceardance with the consabidated entity's accounting policy.

When the renegotiated loans are not derecognised, impairment continues to be assessed for significant increases in
credit risk compared to the initial origination credit risk rating.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

{b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit quality and maximum exposure

The consolidated entity's financing assets are exposed to three areas; retail, fleet and whalesale,
Retail

The retail portfelio is the largest area which comprises a range of loans and recelvables from individueal consumers and
armall business.

Fieet

The fleet portfolio comprises a range of loans and receivables and motor vehicles under operating lease from small to
large commerclal dients and government bodies. it also includes novated leasing customers.

Credit risk arising from individual consumers and small business is managed through the application of credit scoring
and manual underwriting to identify and evaluate acceptable risks and portfolio diversification both demographically
and geographically. Credit risk anising from fleet clients s managed by imposition and review (at 3 minimum annually)
of credit limits toensure fieet clients have the capacity to settle financial commitments. Collateral is also used to secure
funds advanced.

That consolidated entity uses provisioning models to assess the oredit quality of financing assets and estimates provision
for amounts not collectible. Amounts not provided for are deemed collectible.

Wholesale

The wholesale pertfelio includes floar-plan finance to mator dealers for new and wsed motor vehicle stock under either:

&« A ballment facility, under which mator vehicles are bailed by the company to a dealer, and the company retains
ownership of each vehicle until the dealer sells it to a customer; or

=  Acharge plan facility, under which the company provides finance to a dealer for purchase of motor vehicles which
are charged to the company as security.

In addition to the floor-plan facilities, the wholesabe portfolio also includes term loans to dealerships to finance property
and premises, and revolving working capital loans, These loans are typlcally secured by general security agreements,
real property mortgages and personal guarantees.

Due to the nature of these facilities, there is 3 concentration in the motor vehicle dealership industry, with the risk
spread across market locations throughout Australia. In addition to the coflateral security obtained, credit risk is
managed through regular auditing of the dealerships’ wehicle inventory, monthly monitoring of financial performance
and ongoing annual reviews. The concentration of credit risk In relation to the two operating segments ks reflected in
Mate 7,

49

182/312



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

|b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit risk exposure by credit quality

The table below show the masimum exposure (o credit sk by key elass of financiol assets, to which the expected
credit less model is applied, based on how the consalidated entity manages the eredit risk:

=  The days past due for retail and non-rated fleet,
#  The risk grade for non-retail portfolio,

Retail (general approach)

Loans and receivables
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
not credit- credit-
12 month ECL impaired impaired Total
Consolidated 20232 000 £'o00 £'000 5'D00
Equal to and less than 30 days 13,165,058 77866 - 13,242,924
31-60 days . 178,194 . 178,194
51-90 days . 31,140 - 31,140
Ower 90 days [credit impaired) - - 67,310 67,310
Total 13,165,058 287,200 67,310 13,519,568
Consolidated 2021
Equal to and less than 30 days 11,715,802 - - 11,715,802
3160 days - 112,861 - 112,361
61-90 days - 26,651 - 26,651
Over 90 days [credit impaired) - - 43,392 43,392
Total 11,715,802 139,512 43,392 11,898,706
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management (continued)

|b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit risk exposure by credit quality {continued)

Whaolesale (general approach)
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL -
not credit- eredit-
12 manth ECL impaired impaired Tatal

Consolidated 2022 5'000 5'000 £'000 5000
Grade 1-7 Normal Risk 4,556,088 138 746 - 4,790,834
Grade E-11 Watchlist = 28,294 - 28,294
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) : . : .
Total 4,556,088 267,040 + 4,823,128
Consolidated 2021
Grade 1-T Mormal Risk 4 018,670 275,073 b 4,293 743
Grade E-11 Watchlist - 69,223 - 69,223
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) - . u .
Total 4,018,670 344,296 - 4,362,966

Fleet non-graded customer (simplified approach)

Lease and laans
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

not credit- credit-

impaired impaired Tatal
Consolidated 2022 5'000 $'000 $'000
Equal to and less than 30 days E01,355 = £01,385
31-60 days 15,442 - 15,442
61-90 days 5,187 - 5187
Ower 90 days [credit impaired) - 14,524 14,524
Total 522,024 14,524 536,548
Consolidated 2021
Equal to and less than 30 days 473,B58 - 473,858
31-60 days 13,702 - 13,702
51-90 days 4,640 . 4,640
Creer 90 days [credit impaired) - 12,235 12,235
Total 492,200 12,235 504,435
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)

{b) Credit risk [continued)

{iii} Credit risk exposure by credit quality {continued)
Fleet graded customer [simplified approach)

Lease and loans
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

not credit- credit-

Impaired impaired Tatal
Consalidated 2022 $'000 £'000 5'000
Grade 1-7 Normal Risk 1,809,090 - 1,805,050
Grade B-11 Watchlist 59,190 - 59,190
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) - 108 108
Tatal 1,868,280 108 1,868,388
Consolidated 2021
Grade 1-7 Mormal Risk 1,435,324 - 1435324
Grade B-11 Watchlist A8,160 . 48,180
Grade 12 Default (credit impaired) . 109 109
Total 1,483,484 108 1,483,593

(W] Funding activities

The consolidated entity's treaswry department manages credit risk through the use of external rating sudh as Standard
and Poor's rating of equivalent, counterparty diversification, monitoring of counterpary financial condition and
ensuring master netting agreemaents are in place with all derwative counterparties,

The below table shows the percentage of the consolidated entity's money market deposits and dervatives relating to
funding activities, based on the Standard & Poor's rating.

Consolidated Consalidated

2022 2021
Rating % %
A~ g 2
A
A 91 a7
A
100 100

The makimum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting peried, without taking into account collateral obtained,
is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for dowbiful debts or impairment, of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the statement of financial position.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)
(¢} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the consolidated entity is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be failure to meet
obligations ta repay creditors and fulfil commitments te lend. The consolidated entity, in the normal course of business,
reguires substontial funding to support the level of its earning assets and working capital reguirements, and
consequently is exposed to liguidity risk,

The liquidity management processes carried out by the treaswry department includes:

= Day-to-day funding managed by monitoring existing and future cash Rows to ensure that financial reguirements
can be met. This includes planning the reglenishment of funds before they mature orfand borrowed by customers.
The consolidated entlity maintains an active presence in the domestic and international capital markets to enable
this to happen;
Monitoring the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and
Maintaining backup credit Facilities,

(i} Finameing arrangements

The consolidated entity utilises various linancing arcangements such ag commaercial paper, medium term notes, bilateral

bank loans and securitisation to meet liquidity requirements, It has access to a wide array of credit facilities to manage

liquidity risk [refer to Note 13].

(i) Maturity of financial liabilities

The tables below analyses the consolidated entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their

remaining contractual maturity as at the reporting period for all:

=  non-derivative financial liabilities; and

* net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows,

The amaunts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash fliows, For interest rate swaps, the cash flows have
been estimated using forward interest rates applicable at the end of the reporting period.,
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Liquidity risk {continued)

{ii} Maturity of financial liabilities [continued)

313 Ower 5

<lMonth  1-3 Montks Months 1+5 Years. Years Total
Consolidated 2002 5'000 £000 5'000 000 5'000 5000
Non-dirivatives
Banks and other Arascial instituthon s 214,244 200,450 1,384,575 3,033,975 - 491324
Bond and commongial papes 1,797,259 3.312,295 1,150,006 6,053,517 1,500,518 16,810,595
Oiher Habilties 557,152 10,168 45,132 42,356 . E34801
Leasc Babilnies : 726 1440 6,345 22,066 8235 38812
Tatsl non-dorivatives 560,381 3614336  BSTEOSE 11,047,904 LS0975F 22407467
Derivatives
Forward foregn eachange conbractsy
- Dowgh camency |JmnET4) (L0326 [ELEERH] - - (8,083,682
- ol gurnency &01,323 2,381,768 #07,960 ] = 3186051
Enleresd rate swagi 51 {5.513) [F-Xe e ]} 51,755 - 43,710
Cross Curfrncy Swips
- Py leg 1,352,002 B2 sy ®52, 741 6,052, 15T LTANGSS L0106 S5
- Receive leg (LANETEN)  [134PRO0Y  [FEGSES) (5007000  [1501%18)  (B646,523)
Total dervatives FELECE] e 98252 1,006,513 raplal 1,548 562
Tots 4 360,210

312 Owrer &

<l Month  1-3 Mantha Manths 1-5 Years Yiears Total
Conaolidated 221 5'000 Sodd 500 5000 5000 000
HWon-derivatines
Bariks aned other francial natitutsons * 102 510 2511 105517 1,600, 0F7 . 4,148 183
Bond: and commercial papes * F.154 387 2176347 1A2LAN BAGT. 087 BI5423  17.035075
Ohher liabilties RRD 075 112 ARGE 56 434 . A% 06
Ledse Babilnies 517 1,007 5,747 &t 11,513 a6,11%
Total non-derivatives 3720498 24338 S997I3 10051847 BIGSH  20ITE
Db thves
Fonwand lormign eschangs conbracts
- Bowght currency |BOT.S64)  (1,361,7R1} (1009045 . -+ (3,188,394]
« St gurnency 802,468 1,372,183 1,005,860 - . 1,150,510
PleeRSl raln Swans 11,508 {6, 408) [12.058| (23,566 . 63,8300
CI0S5 CUFPRNDY SWas
- Pay leg 1,053,781 3,884 1,037,718 E,371859 9,435 986
- Receive log TS @363 (1021205)  (5,798.518) B.656.046]
Tortel derbegthony 19,527 4439 P 550,717 108,226
Taotal 749,035 2434233 5950,869 10,602,634 979251 22,726,003
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Operating assets and liabilities

This secthon covers the operating assets and liabilities of the consolidated entity including cash and cash equivalents,
prepayments, accounts payable and accrued expenses payable.

21. Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits

{a) Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated Consolidated
2022 2021
4000 £'000
Cash in bank 116,444 110,028
Deposits at call 2,081,000 3,361,000
2,197,444 3,471,028

At the end of financial year, the company held restricted cash of 5232,623,000(2021: 5209,862,000) in cash and deposits
at call representing cash collections on securitised assets transferred to special purpese entities.

Recognition and measurement

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdratts, Cash in bank and deposits
at call earn interest at prevailing market rates. Interest & recognised in the income statement using the effective interest

rate method.
{b} Term deposits
Consolidated Consolidated
022 2021
§'000 5000
Term deposits - 554,000
Total term deposits = 554,000
Maturity analysis
Current
Term deposits - 554,000
Noa-current
Term deposits .
Term deposits - 554,000

Term depasits inclede deposits (not at call) placed with financial institutions with original maturities greater than three
maonths and are measured at amortised cost. Interest Is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest
rate method.
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)
22. Cash flow information

{a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash outflow from operating activities

Consolidated Consolidated

022 2021
&'000 £'000

Profit attributable to cwners of the parent 314,998 185,168
Share of profit of associates (10, 7E3) (10,250)
Depreciation, write-alf and amartisatian 24,674 32,089
Amortisation - upfront receipts 2,198 1,812
Amartisation - prepaid cxpenses 19,891 24,5920
Met gain on sale or derecognition of non-current assets (56, 643) (37,101)
Met [gain)flozs on translation of forelgn currency transactions {455,620) (3,839,389
Changes in fair value of financial instrumaents 269,115 1,834 876
Mavements in operoting assets and Nebilithes:

(Decrease)fimcrease in provision los impairment of receivable {35,700) {62.000)
|Decrease]fincrease in provision fos impairmant on residual value 122.400) {14,500)
Decreasef[Increase] in loans and receivables 12,497,930) 44773
Diecrease/(Increase) in assets under net operating lease (net of accumalated

depreciation) {11,372} 20,909
Decrease/(Increase] in deferred tax asset 6,967 [11,525)
(Becreasa)fincrease in deferred tax liability . (10,177)
|Decrease)fIncrease in other, contract and lease liabikties 156,919 (124 641)
{Increase)fDecrease in other assets (92,833) [50,458)
Inereasef{Decrease) in income tax payable 12,114 32,550
Increasef{Decrease) in derivative financial instruments at falr value through

profit o lnss 370,922 1316111
Decreasef(Increase) in term deposits 554,000 (554,000}
Net cash outflow from operating activities {1,451,385) (721,523}
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

22, Cash flow information (continued)

|b) Reconciliation of Habilities arising from finanding activities

Comabdated
at 1 Apdll 2028

5'000
BOrmowiIngs

20,585 613

Leawe Nabilities 41,550

Conmobdated
at 1 Apdl 2020

5000
Borrowsrgs

0TI TER

Loase Rabiiities A5 T

Canh flown
S'000

268,193

15.505|

Cah flown
5000

2,284,692

[=.563)

Forelgn
exchange

000

{125 954)

Forelgn
exchangs

5000

2,077 543

&7

Mon-cash charges
Resagnised
on
adopiion
Amortisation  of AASH 16
L1000 £000
2B, 00
Mon-cash changes
Recagnised
en
adopiicn
Amortisation  of AASR 16
000 000
47,713
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Additiom/
Derecogrition
of lease
lia blgien

000

286

Additions of
lease liabilities

000

1806

Comsolidated at
31 March 2022

S'000

21, 136547

15TH

Consolidated at
1 Masch 2021

5'000

20,965 543
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

23, Other assots

Consolidated Consolidated

2022 2021

£'000 S'000
Prepayments Al agl 24,393
Other debrors 172,403 63,519
Accrued interest receivable 150 852
213,534 BB, 764
Other assets expacted to be recovered within 12 months 202,778 BT.789
Other assets expacted to be recovered after more than 13 months 10,756 995
213,534 86,764

24, Other liabilities and contract liabilities

{a) Other Habilities
Consolidated Consolidated
022 2021
$'000 $'000
Employee entitlhements 16,684 14,326
Acerued interest payable 63,586 70,730
Ampunts payable to related entities® 196,454 219,824
Accounts payable® 258,880 B5,023
Accrued expenses [Induding related parties) 91,992 75,624
Other 27,205 32,819
654,801 458,406
Qther liabilities expected to be settled within 12 months 612,445 441,982
Other liabifities expected to be settled in more than 12 months 42,356 56,424
654,801 498,406
* Dudt 45 reclassilication, priof year ameunts havs Boen restabed, Tha did net affect ihe Rabilities presented in the tondakdited tatement of fingneial
position
{b) Contract liabilities

The consolidated entity has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities.

Consolidated Consalidated

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Contract lakbilities 116,261 103,909

Of the above amount, 573,428,000 (2021: 562,345,000) = expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance date,
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities. Note the amounts presented below are gross, while the amounts recegnised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income are presented net of related costs as the consolidated entity i acting
as an agent,
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

24, Other labilities and contract lHabilities (continued)

|b) Contract liabdlities [continued)
Consolidated Consolidated
2022 2021
$'o00 $'000
Rewenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period 71,332 63,428

As permitted under AASB 15, the transaction price allocated to (partially) unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31
Barch 2022 and 31 March 2021 s not disclosed.

Employee entitlements
{i} Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the end of each
reparting period are recognized in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability Is settled. Uabilities for non-accumulating sick leave
are recognised when the leave is taken and moasured at rates paid of payable.

{ii}) Other longterm employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried
in which the employees rendered the related service. They are therefore recognised in the provision for employee
benelits and measwured a3 the present value of expecied future payments o be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of each reporting period. Consideration is given at expected fulure wage and salary lewvels,
euperience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market
yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash flows,

{iii} Retirement benefit obligation

All employees of the consolidated entity are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death according to the
consolidated entity's superannuation plan. The consolidated entity has a defined contribution plan, The defined
contribution plan receives fived contributions from the consolidated entity and the consolidated entity's legal and
constructive obligation iz limited to these contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid

contributlons are recognised as an asset to the extent that cash refund, or @ reduction in the futwre payments Is
available.
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This section cuthnes the non-operating assets of the consolidated entity. Included in this section are the following
information:

Investment accounted for using the equity method
PFroperty, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Imangible assets

[Deferred tax asset

25. Investment accounted for using the equity method

The principal activities of Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were:

Consolidated

2022 2021

5'000 4'000
Name of entity
[a) Movement in carrying amount
Linfisted
Teyota Finance Mew Zealand Limited
Carrying amount at 1 Agril 95,639 90,145
Share of profits after income tax 10,783 10,950
Dividend received 111,209] -
Met exchange differences on translation of foreign
assoclate entity 1,109 {5,456]
Carrylng amaunt at 31 March 96,322 95,639

Ownarship intarast
2022 2021
] *
a5 .45 45,45

to finance motor vehicke acquisitions in the form of leasing, term purchase, conzumer and commercial loans;

to provide bailment facilities and commercial baans 1o Toyata dealers:

the marketing of vehicle and finance related insurance products;

the provision of retail finance and related products for pleasure boats;

the provision of unsecured personal loans; and
to provide for car sharing services,

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial stabements wsing the equity method of

ccounting and are carried at cost.

[b) Share of associates” profits
Profit before income tax
Ingome tax expense

Profit after income tax
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

25, Investment accounted for using the equity method (continued)

Consolidated entity's share of:

Assets Liabilities Revenues Prafit

5'000 4'000 5000 5000
() Summarised financial information of associates
Consolidated 2022
Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited 566,959 468, 556 56,775 10,783
Consolidated 2021
Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited 536,657 450411 59,319 10,950

Principles of consalidation

Associates are all entities over which the consclidated entity has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in assodiates are accounted
for in the consolidated finamcial statements using the equity method of accounting, after inltially being recognised at
cosl.

The consolidated entity's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit ar boss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements In reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acqulsition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the Investment. Dividends recelvable from
associates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the carrying amount of the
imestment.

‘When the consolidated entity’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any ather unsecured long-term receitvables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses, uniess it has
incurred obBgations or made payments on behalf of its associate,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the consalidated entity and its associates are aliminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity’s interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting polickes of ascociates have been changed where
neCessary to ensure consistency with the pelicies adopted by the consolidated entity.

Forelgn currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the consolidated entities are measured using the currency of the
primary econamic environment in which the entity operates [the fenctional curfency), The consolidated financial

statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the company’s functional and presentation currency.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the foreign entity from
functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive income.

{b) Transactions and balances
Foredgn currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevalling at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and logwes resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

fram the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss,
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

26, Property, plant and equipment
Accumulated Carrying
Consolidated 2022 Cost depreclation value
S'000 5'000 5'000
Leasehold improvements 17,136 5,985 11,151
Plant and equipment B,535 5,369 1,166
hator vehicles 10,185 1,837 8,348
33,856 13,191 20,565
Accumulated Carrying
Consalidated 2021 Cast depriciation walue
5'000 5000 £'000
Leasehold improvements 17,136 3 664 13,472
Plant and equipmont 6,279 3,730 2,499
Mator vehicles E.966 1,429 1.537
33,381 B.8373 23,508
Leasehold Plant and Motor
Consolidated 2022 improvements equipment wehicles Totals
5000 5000 $'000 5000
Carrying value at 1 April 13,472 2,499 7,537 23,504
Additions - 256 5,922 6,178
Disposals - - 13,222) 13,222)
Depreciation {2,321) [1, 585) |1,.889) (5, 798|
Carrying value at 31 March 11,151 1,166 8348 20,665
Leasehaold Plant and Motor
Consolidated 2021 improvements equipment withicles Totals
5000 5000 5000 5000
Carrying value at 1 April 13,405 3,005 7439 23,849
Additions 2,316 1,520 7,309 11,145
Disposals - - {5,201) 5,201}
Depreciation (2,257 1,918} 12,010 |G, 185)
Transfer B - - B
Wiite-off - { 108| - {108
Carrying value at 31 March 13472 2499 7,537 23,508
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MNon-operating assets (continued)

26, Property, plant and equipment [continued)

Gaims and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or logs,

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical eost less accumulated depreciation, Historical cost includes
enpenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subseguent costs are Included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as @ separate asset, as approgriate, only
when it is prabable that future econombe benefits assoclated with the item will flow te the consalidated entity and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All ather repairs and maimenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment is calculated wsing the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, aver thelr estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asiet class Mathod Estimated usetul life

Plant and equipment Straight line 3-5 years

Maotor vehicles Straight line 1-3 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line Unexpired portion of lease or useful

life af asset whichever is shorter
The asset’s residual values and useful lves are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at cach balance sheet date,

An asset’s carrying amount s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount Is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Mon-operating assets (continued)
27, Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Thie balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
S7000 5'000
Propertics 27.830 35,014
Total right-of-use assets 27,830 35,014
Lease liabilities 35,731 41,950
Tatal lease liabilities 35,731 41,950
Maturity analysis
Current
Lease liabilities - current 7.609 6219
MNow-current
Lease liabilities - non-current 8122 35731
35731 41,950

The statement of profit or koss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Consolidated Consalidated

w2 2021

Mote 5'000 5'000
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets - Properties 5 1.184 1,593
Interest expense (included in interest expense and similar charges) 3a o03 1,196
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expense] 246 282

The total cash outflow for leases (excluding short term leases) durlng the financial year was 57,300,000 (2021:
$6,233,000),

{a) The consolidated entity's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The consolidated entity leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 3 to 10 years but
may have eatension options as described below, Lease terms are negatiated on an individual basis and contain different
Lerms and conditions.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding Fability at the date at which the leased asset Is
available for use by the consolidabed entity, Each lease payment is allocated between the liabllity and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to prefit or boss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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MNon-operating assets (continued)
27. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)
{a]) The consolidated entity’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for [continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis, Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

= fiwed payments, bess any lease incentives receivable, and

+  wvariable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the consolidated entity
wiould have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtaln an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged 1o profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period,

Right-of-use assels are measured at cost comprising the falkowing:

#  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

& any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, and
- any initial direct cogts,

Right-of-use ascets are generally depreciated over the sharter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straighit-
line basis.

Paymients associated with short-1evm leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less,

{b) Extension option

Extension option is included in a number of property leases across the consolidated entity. These terms are used 10
manimise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension options held are exercisable
only by the consolidated entity and not by the respective lessor,

In determining the lease term, managerment considers all facts and circumstances that ereate an economic incentive 1o

uprcisg an extension option, of not exercise a termimation option, Extension options, or periads after termination
options, are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended, or not terminated.
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Mon-operating assets (continued)
28, Intangible assets
Significant accounting estimate and judgement

Judgement has been applied in determining whether any changes to the owned software meets the definition of and
recognition criteria for an intangible asset in accordance with AASE 138 Intangible Assets.

The international Financial Reporting Standards interpretations Committee {IFRIC) has issued two final agenda
decisions which impact Software as a Service [“52a5”) arrangements:

= Custamer's right to receive access to the supplier's software hosted on the cloud (March 2019] — this decision
considers whether a customer receives a software asset at the contract commencement date or a service
over the contract term,

» Configuration or customisation costs in a doud computing arrangement [April 2021} = this declslon discusses
wheather configuration or customisation expenditure relating to 5aa% arrangements can be recognised as an
intangible asset and if not, over what time-period the expenditure is expensed.

Software-as-a-5ervice [5aas) arrangements

5aa% arrangements are service contracts providing the consolidated entity with the right to access the 5aa5 service
provider's application software over the contract period. As such the consolldated entity does mot recelve a software
intangible asset at the contract commencement date,

The following outlines the accounting treatment of costs incurred in relation to Saa% arrangements:
Saas arrangement costs are recognised as an operating expense over the term of the service contract:
® Fee for use of application software
= Customisation costs

The company's accounting policy has historically been to capitalice all costs related to SaaS arrangements as intangible
assets in the Statement of Financial Position. The adoption of the above agenda decisions has resulted ina
reclassification of these intangible assets to either a prepaid asset in the Statement of Financial Position and/or
recognition as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, where impacts of those adjustments are taken
in the current financial year, as the management considers the impacts Immaterial in relation to the overall financial
statements presented.

In applying the consolidated entity's accounting policy on Intangible Assets, the directors made the following key
judgements that may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements for 5aa%
arrangements where costs are incurred in respect of configuration and customisation and how those are treated.

Determination whether configuration and customisation services are distinct from the Saas access

Implementation costs including costs to configure or customise the 5aa% provider™s apphication software are
recognised as operating expenses when the services are receivad,

Where the 5aa5 arrangement supplier provides both configuration and customisation services, judgement has been
applied to determing wiether each of thess services are distinet ar not from the underlying use of the 5aas
application software, Distinct configuration and customisation costs are expensed as incurred as the software i
configured or customised [i.e, wpfront), Mon-distinct configuration and customisation costs are expensed over the
Saal contract term, considered as prepaid expenses over the life of the Saas contract term,

Mon-distinct customisation activities significantly enhance or modify a 53a% doud-based application. Judgement has
been applied in determining whether the degree of customisation and modification of the 5aa5 coud-based
application is significant or not.
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MNon-operating assets (continued)

28, Intangible assets (continued)

Capitalisation of configuration and customisation costs in 5aas arrangements

The conselidated entity capitalised configuration and customisation costs in the following events:

= Inimplementing 5025 arrangements, the consalidated entity has developed software code that cither
enhances, modifies or creates additional capablity to the existing owned software. This sofvwarne is used to
connect with the 5aas arrangement cloud-based application.

# Incertain events judgement has also been made to recognise whether 53a% could be migrated to 3 an
premise arrangement if such a need arises in future.

#  There are situations where some of these costs incurred are fof the development of software code that
enhances, madifies or creates additional capabsility to existing on-premise systems and meets the recognition
eriteria for an intangible asset.

During the financial year, the consobidated entity has recognised § 20.041 million [3021: 519,449 million) as intangible
assets in respect af custamisation sad configuration costs incurred i implementing 5aa5 arfangemants,

During the financial year, the consolidated entity recognised 5 13,971 million as prepayments in respect of
configuration and customisation activities undertaken in implementing 5aa% arrangements, which are considered not
to be distinct from the access to the 5aas application software over the contract term. Had these adjustrments been
incorporated in the prior reporting period the prior reporting period profit would have been lower by 5 5.7 million.

Impairment of assots

Intangible assets are tested for impalrment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
armount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
eaeeds [t recoverable amount. The recoverable armount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to resell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairmant, assots are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other asset groups [cash
Benerating umits).
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

28, Intangible assets (continued)
Carrying
Cost Amortisation value
5'000 5'000 5'000
Soltware
Consolidated 2022 62,758 13,682 159,0M6
Consolidated 2021 67,958 25,294 42 564
Consolidated Consolidated
2022 2021
s'000 5'000
Carrying value at 1 April 42,664 41,426
Additions 30,041 15,449
Amariisation expense §11,691) |15,229)
Transfer (31,918) 8]
Write-off - (2.974)
Carrying value at 31 March 28,076 42,664

*Transfers represents adjustmeants to the intangible assets refating to work undertaken for 5335, 527.9 million has been
transferred to Prepayment and Software expense and 54.03 million has been expensed out in the current yoar as
software expense.
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Mon-operating assets (continued)
29, Deferred tax assets

Aefer to Note B Incaome tax expense for further information on income tax.

Consofidated Consolidated

2022 021
4'000 £'000
Deferred tax asset balances comprise temporary differences attributable te:
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Proviskon for impairment of loans and advances 57,540 74,970
Financial instruments 16,5920 3,806
Acerued expenses 45 466 42,444
Sundry iterms 15,860 B27%
Total amount recognised in conselidated statement of finandial position 135,786 129,496
Deferred tax Hability balances comprise temporary differences attributable
ta:
Amaounts recognised in the balance sheet
Assets financed under lease 126,085 112,405
Sundry items 5.143 5,566
Tatal amount recognised in consolidated statement of finandal position 131,228 117,971
Net deferred tax sssetsf{liabilities) 4,558 11,525
Gross deferred tax assets opening balance 129,496 102,851
Movement in temporary differences during the year
Provision for impairment of loans and advances 117.430) (22,950]
Financial instruments 13,114 43,405
Accrued expendes iz 373
Sundry items 7,584 a15
Gross deferred tax assets elosing balanes 135,786 129,496
Gross deferred tax liabilities opening balance 117,971 113,028
Maovement in temporary differences during the yvear
Assets financed under lease 13,680 5,243
Sundry iterns [423] 1300
Gross deferred tax liabilities closing balance 131,228 117,971
et deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 4,558 11,525
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Unrecognised items

This section provides information about items that are not recognised in the financial statements as they do not satishy
the recognition criteria but are relevant for the understanding of the financial performance of the consolidated entity.

30. Contingent liabilities

The company, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Uimited G5T Group ["G5T Group™), is jointly and
severally Hable for 100% of the poods and services tax (“GET”) payvable by the GST Group. The GST Group had a net GST
payahble as at 31 March 2022 of $E2,145,000 (2021: 591,045,000].

The company, in association with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner, implemented the
income tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited as the head
entity. Under the income tax consolidation begislation, income tax consolidation entities are jalntly and severally Kable
for the income tax liability of the consolidated ncome tax group wnless an income Lax sharing agreement has been
enfered inta by member entities, At the date of signing this financial report an incame tax sharing agreement has been
eveouted.

31. Commitments

Consolidated Consolidated
2022 021
$'000 $'000
Capital commitmenis

32, Subsequent events

Ukralne War Impact on Expected Credit Losses

The consalidated enfity has examined the petential implications of the invasion of Russian troops on Ukraing on 24™
February 2022, on the ECL estimate and the macroeconomic scanarios {MES) structure, by considering Moody's
“Ukraing War Lengthy Conflict™ scenario released on 25" February 2022, For each of the consolidated entity portfolio
{i.e., Retail, Fleet, and Wholesale], the ECL under this scenario was lower than the 53 Recession ECL, suggesting the
Ukraine War impact on the consolidated entity accounts was less severe than the 53 Recession impact.

The current model structure of using scenarios 51, Baseline, and 53, together with the 5%, 50%, and 45% probability
welghtings respectively for 2ach of the three scenarios was deemed sufficient. Hence an additional Ukraine War
owverlay i not required.

Diesel Particulate Filter (DFF)

There is currently a class action against Toyota Motor Corporation Australia in respect to the Diesel Particulate Filter
{DFF) system in certain Hiluk, Fortuner, and Frado vehides.

The consolidated entity undertook a review of the total operating lease portfolio and identified the affected contracts
with impacted vehicles. An analysis of recent sales of the affected vehicles since 1 September 2021, highlighted that
the majority of thess vehicles were sold at profit.

Managemeni believes currently there Is no provision required for the DPF class action on the part of the consolidated
entity.

Cther than as set out abowe, the directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstances that has occurred since
31 March 2022 that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, the
results of these operations or the state of affairs of the consalidated entity in subsequent financial periods.
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Other disclosure matters
This section covers other information that s not directly related to specific line items in the financial statements,

including information about subsiciaries, related party transactions, parent entity information and other statutory
disclatures,

33, Subsidiaries

The consalidated financial statements incorporate the assets, labilites, and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy descriteed in Note 20

Ownership interest
Country of Class of 022 021

Name of entity Incorporation shares % L3
Australian Alllance Automative Finance Pty Limited* Australia Ordinary 100 100

* Investment value of 52 has been rounded ta nil. This subsidiary has been granted relief from the necessity to prepare finandal statements
im accondance with ASIC Instrument 1016/7H5 issued oy the Australian Secuniies and mvestrent Commissian, For further Infprmadicn, refer
b Mise 37, The propostion of The oweership interest i eguil Lo ve proponmon of witing pewer held,

Units owned
022 2021
Mame of trust % %
Southorn Cross Toyota 2009-1 Trust ** 100 100
King Koala TFA 2012-1 Trust ** 100 100

** invesirnent vabue of 510 has been rounded ta Snil
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

34. Related party transaction

Thits note shows the extent of related party transactions that are undertaken by the consalidated entity and the impact
they had on the financial performance and position of the consolidated entity,

{a) Entities in the wholly owned group

The ultimate Australion parent entity is Toyota Finance Australia Limited, a whally awned subsidiary of Toyota Financial
Services Corporation, which is a whelly owned subsidiary of the ultimate parent entity, Toyota Moter Carporation
incorporated in lapan.

b} Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are sel out in Note 33,

(¢} Associates

Investments in associates are 581 out in Mote 25.

{d) Key management persannel

fil kKey management personnel compensation
Consolidated Consolidated

2022 021
L] H
Short-term employee benefits, post-employment, other long-term and
termination benefits 1,812,635 3,051,971

{#) Equity instrument disclosures relaling to key management persannel

There were no issued ordinary shares of the ultimate parent entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan under
option to key management personnel as at 31 Mardh 2022 and 31 March 2021.

{#i} Loans to key management personne!

Mo loans to key management persennel were recognised as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
34, Related party transaction [continued)
(e} Transactions and balances with related parties

Transactions and balances with related parties are set out below. These are incheded in the consolidated entity's
consofidated staterment of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position for the period.

Consolidated Consolidated

022 021
5000 5'000

Met financing income
Affiliate finance income 12,376 14,329
interest on lease liabilivies to affiliated entity {123) {135}
Credit support fees paid to parent entity {19,765) [20,803)
Debt issuance fees paid 1o affiliated entity (230] {199)
Dbt issuance fees paid to parent entity [211) {1594)
Expenses
Marketing expenses paid to affiliated entity - el
Security shared services and licence fee 2,457 2,346
Assots
Loans and receivables

Deferred finance income from affiliates® {20,458) {20,755)
Other assets

Accounts receivable from affiliates® 4,247 1,429
Liabilities
Non-interest bearing loans payable to affiliates 26,428 40,522
Accounts payable to affiliates® 110,026 178,302
Lease liabiities to affiliates 4,374 4,828
Accrued expenses payable to parent entity® 8,875 10,333
Accrued expenses payable to affiliates 104

* Mor-inharest besring

Mo bad debts expense and allowance for doubtful debis were recognised in relation to any receivable due from related
parties as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
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Other disclosure matters ([continued)
35, Parent entity information

TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Parent Parent
2022 1021
$'000 5'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,197,444 3471028
Term deposits - 554, 000
Loans and receivables 18,313,002 16,764,701
Maotor vehicles under operating lease 1,686,331 1,597,285
Derivative financial instruments 91,673 254,303
Investment cost in associate 4,284 4,284
Intangible assets 29,076 42 664
Praperty, plant and egquipment 20,665 231,508
Right-of-use assats. 27,830 35,014
Deferred tax assets 2,158 9,125
DOther assets 3432476 2,148,232
Total assets 26,104,939 24,904,134
Liabilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 1,234,008 1,234,558
Bonds and commerclal paper 16,379,643 16,851,185
Related party liabilities - SPY 4 445872 3,619,525
Derivative financial instruments 1,251,824 718,641
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Dther liabilities 547,283 496,864
Contract labilities 116,261 103,909
Leass liabilities 15,731 41,950
Total liabilities 24,110,623 23,126,632
Nt aidets 1,994,316 1,777,512
Equity
Contributed equity 120,000 120, 000
Resendes * -
Retained earnings 1874316 1657512
Total equity 1,994,316 1,777,512

As at 31 March 2022, current assets and current Rabilities amounted to 59,852, 748.000 and %10,014,765,000
respectively (2021: 5$10,995442.000 and 511,159,340,000 respectively). The current assets |nclude loans and
receivables, net of unearned income and excluding provision for impairment of loans and recenables,
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35, Parent entity information [continued)

TOYOTA FINAMCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Parent Parent

2033 2021

£'000 £'000
Interest revenue BTEBIE 721,757
Rental income on motor vehicles under oparating lease 412,764 406,590
Fee moame 46,393 A4, 064
Financing and similar revenua 1,137,745 1,172,511
Interest expense and similar charges | 382, 9000 |562.926)]
Depreciation expense on motor vehicles under operating lease [350,223) |342.422)
Financing expense and similar charges (733,123 {905, 348)
Met financing and similar revenue 404,672 267,163
Other revenue 203,110 100,043
Net operating income 607,782 437,206
Credit impairment reversalf{loss) 12,321 35,721
Hon-credit impairment reversal/[loss) 22,024 13,287
Emplayee benefits expense |165,212) | 157, 206|
Depreciation, write-off and amaortisation [24,674) [32.089)
IT and commumnication expense [58,428) [35.791)
Sales and marketing expense 8, 00} |8,559)
Other expenses (30,077 |28.099)
share of overhead expenses related to subsidiaries 32,198 31,622
Prafit before income tax 307,934 256,092
Income tax expanse (128, 8565] |79,202)
Profit after income tax 265,069 176,890

{a) Guarantees entered into by the parent entity
The company has no financial guarantee in relation to securitisation of loans and receivables.

{b} Contingent liabilities of the parent entity
Refer to Note 30 = Contingent liabilities. Note 30 also applies to the parent entity, as the parent entity also has the
point and several liability referred to in note 30,

{c) Contractual commitments by the parent entity
The company has no financial commitrments.
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

36. Auditor's remuneration

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the awditor of the parent entity, its
related practices and non-related audit firms:

Consalidated Consalidated

2022 2021
5 ]

PricewaterhouseCoopers - Australian firm

Audit ar review of the finangial reparts 294 742 605,617
Other statutory assurance services 405,751 282,005
Other assurance services 330,243 334,451
Total audit and other assurance services 1,620,736 1,222,073
Tawation 16,137 36,97
Tatal remuneration 1,636,873 1,259,049
Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers-Australian firm (including

owerseas PricewaterhouseCoopers firms)

Other assurance services 97,141 75,775

37. Deed of cross guarantes

Toyota Finance Australia Limited and Australian Alliance Automotive Finance Pry Limited are partles to a deed of cross
guarantee under which each company guarantees the debts of the othar, By entering into the deed, the wholly owned
entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and a directors” report under ASIC
Instrument 2016/ TES issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

The above companies represent a “Closed Group™ for the purposes of the Legislative Instrument, and as there are no
other parties 1o the Deed of Cross Guarantes that are controlled by Toyota Finance Australia Limited, they also represent
the "Extended Closed Group™,

Set out below are the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of the closed group for the year ended 31 March 2022,
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
37. Deed of cross guarantee [continued)

Cansolidated statement of financial position

Consolidated Consolidated

2022 2021
$'000 £'000
Astels
Cath and cash equivalents 2,197 444 3,471,028
Term deposits - 554,000
Loans and recenvables 20,586,182 18,052,552
Maotor vehicles under operating lease 1,686,331 1,597,285
Derivative financial instrumeants 391 673 254,308
Investment accounted for using the equity method 96,322 95,639
Intangible assets 29075 42,664
Property, plant and equipment 20,665 23,504
Right-of-use assets 27,830 35,014
Deferred tax assets 4 558 11,525
Other assets 1,136,112 827,389
Total assets 26,176,193 24,964,907
Liabilities
Dusir o banks and other inancial institutions 1,234,009 1,234,558
Bands and commercial paper 16,379,643 16,851,185
Related party liabilities - 5PV 4,445 872 3,819,525
Derivative financial instruments 1,251,824 TTE641
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Other labilitics 654,801 A58, 406
Contract liabilities 116,261 103,909
Lease liabilities a5 731 41,950
Total Rabilities 24,118,141 23,128,174
Net assets 2,058,052 1,836,733
Equity
Contributed eguity 120,000 120,000
Reserses 4,123 3,020
Retained earnings 1,933,523 1,713,713
Total equity 2,058,052 1,836,733
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
37, Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated Consolidated

2022 2021

£'0o0 £'000
Interest revenue 738,758 751,126
Rental income on mator vehicles under operating lease 412,764 406,590
Fee income 49,563 45,078
Financing and similar revenue 1,201,085 1,202,834
Interest expense and similar charges {408, 652) {575, T86)
Depreciation expense on moter vehicles under operating fease (350,223) [342,422)
Financing expense and similar charges [7SE.HTS) {918,208)
Net financing and similar revenue 442,210 284,686
Other revenue 203,582 170,455
Net operating incoma 645,792 455,141
Credit impairment reversal/[loss) 21,082 35,654
Non-credit impairment reversal/[loss) 22,024 13,287
Employee benefits expense (165,212) (157, 206)
Depreciation, write-off and amaortisation (24,674) |32.089)
IT and communication expensa (S8,428) 135.791)
Sales and marketing expanse {8,000) [8,559)
Other expenses (30,077) |28.099)
Share of net profits of assaclates accounted for wsing the equity method 10,783 10,950
Profit before income tax 414,190 253 288
Income tax expense (130,507) [75.076]
Profit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited 283,683 178,212
Other comprehensive income
Items that moy be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of fareign operations 1,109 |5,456)
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of Toyota Finance
Australia Limived 284,792 172,756
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
In the directors’ opinkon:

{a} the financial statements and notes set out on pages & to 78 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Reguiations 2001 and ather mandatary
professional reparting requirements; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 March 2022 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

{b} there are reasonable grounds to bélieve that the company will be able 1o pay its debits as and when they become
due and payable; and

{c) atthe date of this declaratson, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the memibers of the Extended Closed
Group identified in note 37 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, ar may become,
subject by virtue of the deed of cross guarantes described in note 37,

Kate 2(a} confirms that the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reparting Standards as
kssued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors,

For and on behalf of the Board

|t - ‘\‘,'.’I-rjl_"r-'_?_a_ AR
E. Tsirogiannis 5. Kadena
Director Director
Sydney Sydney

24 June 2022 24 June 2022
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2022

a)
b)

12
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion
In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities
(together the Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

@ giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 March 2021 and of its financial performance
for the year then ended

(b complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financialreport comprises:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changesin equity for the year then ended

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the yearthen ended

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policiesand other
explanatory information

the directors declaration.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards Board' s APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Sandards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethicalresponsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2021, but does not include the financia report and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledgeobtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothingto report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financialreport

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and isfree
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as agoing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do
0.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit ofthe financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basisof the financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and Assurance

Standards Board website at: http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 15 June 2021
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Independent auditor’'s report

To the membersof Toyota FinanceAustralia Limited

Our opinion
In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities
(together the Consolidated Entity) is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Consolidated Entity's financial position as at 31 March 2022 and of its
financial performance for the year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Consolidated Entity financial report comprises:

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended

the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information

the Directors’ Declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Consolidated Entity in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code)
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 March 2022, but does not include the financial report and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Consolidated Entity
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Consolidated Entity or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
report.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Elizabeth Stesel Sydney
Partner 24 June 2022
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